
October 2022 

Dear Friends, 

The tethered hot air balloon that arrived on our Ferry Road campus last month delighted Residents and 
Associates alike, as they had the opportunity to soar 70 feet in the air for a bird’s-eye view of our campus. This 
magical event sets the tone for the information shared in this report. As we present our financial overview, our 
message is one of hope and resilience. 

Today’s headlines are focused on many challenges facing our current economy and the healthcare sector: 
inflation, supply chain interruptions, staffing challenges, and continuing COVID interruptions. Pine Run and 
Doylestown Health are certainly not alone in our struggle to meet and overcome all of these challenges. Our road 
to financial recovery will require a careful balance of continuing to provide excellence in senior living throughout 
our continuum with careful, smart, and innovative cost improvements.  

We have reinvested more than $7 million in our Ferry Road and Lakeview campuses this past fiscal year. In 
addition to ongoing cottage and apartment renovations, several cluster courtyards have been refurbished; the 
Lakeview interior corridors and public spaces have been beautifully and tasteful renovated; and the Health Center 
has a new outdoor pavilion to welcome residents and guests on the fourth floor, providing a shaded and pleasant 
retreat as outdoor visits have become more important than ever. 

We are Pine Run PROUD of our Associates and Residents for the accolades that we have earned this past year. 
The Health Center has retained its five-star rating from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid, and both its 
Short- and Long-Term Care were recognized as top performers by US News and World Report. The Doylestown 
Intelligencer readers recognized Pine Run in 11 categories in its annual “Best Of” competition. Both the Health 
Center and Companion Services received deficiency-free surveys from the Pennsylvania Department of Health. 
And we take great pride in protecting our community by maintaining 100% COVID vaccine compliance among all 
of our Associates. 

Philanthropy continues to play a major role in our community. We are deeply honored to be the recipient of 
generous donations that have improved the physical beauty of our campus, as well as the lives of our Residents 
and Associates. This year, an anonymous donor funded the planting of over 180 trees and shrubs throughout the 
Ferry Road campus. We will all be able to appreciate this gift that continues to delight and inspire all who visit 
and live on campus. Our Pine Run Resident Association held a special fundraising event this past year to fund 
scholarships for the high school seniors working at Pine Run. We are honored that this will now be an annual 
tradition. Pine Run, in turn, supports fellow community organizations through sponsorships and countless 
volunteer efforts by Residents and Associates. We are truly connected in so many ways to the larger Doylestown 
community. 

We also continue to benefit from and contribute to ONE VISION: The Campaign for Doylestown Health. As 
Doylestown Health approaches its Centennial, we are eagerly refining plans for a much-anticipated $2 million 
campaign to renovate our Craft Barn. This will enhance the lives of the artists and artisans who reside at Pine 
Run. 

Pine Run looks forward to another year of meeting and overcoming challenges so that we can provide 
exceptional care to all whom we serve! 

Sincerely, 

Maria Santangelo 
Executive Director 
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Mission Statement 
 

Pine Run Passionately serves seniors. We have Reinvented 
independence and wellness, Offering a continuum of care and 

Understanding of all phases of aging. We are Dedicated to enhancing 
the quality of life for Residents, Villagers, Associates, Families, and 

Visitors. 
 

 
 

Core Values 
 
 
 

   We behave with a Passion for Excellence 
   We work Collaboratively 
   We treat others with Compassion 
 
 
 

Vision Statement 
 

Pine Run is PROUD to be a forward-thinking senior living community, 
promoting wellness, exceptional care, and independence. 
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DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 

 
PINE RUN COMMUNITY 

(A division of Doylestown Hospital) 

 
October 2022 

 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Under The Pennsylvania Continuing Care Provider Registration and Disclosure Act 
 
 
The filing of this Disclosure Statement and the issuance of a Certificate of Authority by the Department does not 
constitute approval, recommendation or endorsement of the Community by the Department nor is it evidence of, 
nor does it attest to, the accuracy or completeness of the information set out in this Disclosure Statement. 
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Summary of Information 
 
 
1. Name and Address of Community 
 
  Pine Run Community 
  777 Ferry Road 
  Doylestown, PA 18901 
 
 
 
 
2.  Name and Address of Provider 
 
  Doylestown Hospital 
  595 West State Street 
  Doylestown, PA  18901 
 
 
 
 
3. Contact Names, Address and Telephone  
 Numbers for the Community 
 

 Jennifer B. Doone 
 Senior Director of Sales & Marketing 
 Pine Run Community 
 777 Ferry Road 
 Doylestown, PA  18901 
 (215) 340-5214 
 
 Maria Santangelo 
 Executive Director 

  Pine Run Community 
  777 Ferry Road  
  Doylestown, PA 18901 
  (215) 340-5259  
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4. Physical Description of the Community 
 
  The Pine Run Community is located in the "Delaware Valley" region, Doylestown 

Township, Bucks County, Pennsylvania on approximately 43 acres in a 
suburban/rural setting.  The Community comprises 296 cottage style units, a 
centrally located community building, arts and crafts barn, guest house and 
administrative offices.  The Community is also licensed to operate a 90 bed skilled 
nursing facility and a 40 bed secured Personal Care Dementia Unit on the Ferry 
Road campus.  In addition, Pine Run is licensed to operate a 106 bed Personal 
Care Center located at our Pine Run Lakeview campus, approximately three miles 
away in Doylestown. 

 
5. Minimum Age for Admission 
 
  The minimum age for admission to Pine Run is sixty-five (65) years of age. 
 
6. Affiliation 
 
  Pine Run Community is a division of Doylestown Hospital, a Pennsylvania not-for-

profit corporation which operates an acute care medical and surgical hospital near 
the Community in Doylestown, Pennsylvania, as well as other healthcare services. 
Doylestown Hospital is affiliated with the following not-for-profit corporations:   

 
(1) Doylestown Health, a Pennsylvania not-for-profit corporation (“Doylestown 
Health”), is the Provider's parent corporation; (2) The Village Improvement 
Association of Doylestown, a Pennsylvania not-for-profit corporation, is 
Doylestown Health’s parent corporation; (3) Doylestown Health Physicians, a 
Pennsylvania not-for-profit corporation; (4) Covered Bridge Reciprocal Risk 
Retention Group (“CBR RRG”), a wholly owned risk retention group domiciled 
in the State of South Carolina; and (5) DR Cardiology LLC (“DR Cardiology”), a 
Pennsylvania not-for-profit corporation. 

 
 
7. Current Population 
 
 As of September 30, 2022, the population in the Community was 538 residents.  
      

Village Independent Living Cottages & Apartments 330 
Lakeview Personal Care & Garden Memory Care 124 
Health Center Skilled Nursing 84 
Total 538 
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8. Sample of Entrance and Monthly Service Fees   
 
  The examples below, illustrate a sampling of the Entrance Fees and Monthly 

Service Fees for a typical one-bedroom (Chalfont) and two-bedroom (Fringetree) 
residences, for occupancy by one or two residents. 

 
  Traditional Entrance Fee Plan – One Bedroom 
 

Single Double 
  Occupancy Occupancy 
Entrance Fees $175,000  $175,000  
Monthly Fees $2,290  $3,190  

 
 
  Asset Preservation Entrance Fee Plan – One Bedroom 
 

  Single Double 
  Occupancy Occupancy 
Entrance Fees $81,000  $81,000  
Monthly Fees $3,860  $4,760  

 
 

50% Refundable Entrance Fee Plan – Two Bedroom (Plan C) 
 

Single Double 
  Occupancy Occupancy 
Entrance Fees $416,000  $416,000  
Monthly Fees $6,776  $7,676  

 
 

70% Refundable Entrance Fee Plan – Two Bedroom (Plan C) 
  

Single Double 
  Occupancy Occupancy 
Entrance Fees $521,000  $521,000  
Monthly Fees $6,776  $7,676  
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Responses to Section 7 of 
Pennsylvania Act 82 
 
 The following contains the information required by the Continuing Care Provider 

Registration and Disclosure Act (Act 82) as listed in Section 7: 
 
 
I. Name and Address of Provider 
 
 Pine Run Community is a division of Doylestown Hospital, (the Provider), a not-for-profit 

corporation organized under the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania on March 
14, 1923.  The Provider's principal business address is 595 West State Street, 
Doylestown, PA  18901.  Pine Run Community operates as a division of Doylestown 
Hospital at 777 Ferry Road, Doylestown, PA  18901. 

 
 
II. Board of Directors 
 
 The following persons comprise the Board of Directors of Doylestown Hospital, none of 

whom have a financial interest in Doylestown Hospital or Pine Run Community: 
 
 Officers: 
  Marianne Chabot, Chair 
  Barbara Ann Price, Vice Chair 
  James L. Brexler, President/CEO 
  Scott Levy, MD, Chief Medical Officer 
  Patti Stover, Chief Nursing Officer 
  Beverly Harvey, Treasurer 
  Lillian O’Connor, Secretary 
  Catherine Scanlon, Asst. Secretary/Asst. Treasurer 
 
 Members: 

Richard Clark  Kieran Cody, MD  Patrick Counihan 
Brenda Foley, MD  Sandy Homel  William Lieser 
 Brian McLeod  Chris Nardo  Mae O’Brien  

   Pauline (Polly) O’Brien  Marguerite Quinn  
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II. Board of Directors (continued) 

 
 The Officers and Directors of the Provider have broad experience in general business, 

healthcare, financial, philanthropic, and community matters.  The Directors have 
effectively managed the Provider for over ninety years and the Pine Run Community 
since August 1992, when the Provider acquired the Community from L.C. Acquisition 
Corporation.  

 
 Neither the Provider nor any person identified above, has been convicted of a felony or 

pleaded nolo contendere to a felony charge, or been held liable or enjoined in a civil 
action by a final judgment if the felony or civil action involved fraud, embezzlement, 
fraudulent conversion or misappropriation of property. 

 
 Neither the Provider nor any person identified above is subject to a currently effective 

injunction or restrictive order of a court of record, or within the past five (5) years had 
any state or federal license or permit suspended or revoked as a result of an action 
brought by a governmental agency or department, arising out of, or relating to, any 
business activity or any health care business, including without limitation actions 
affecting a license to operate a foster care facility, nursing home, retirement home, 
home for the aged, or facility registered under the Pennsylvania Continuing Care 
Provider Registration and Disclosure Act or similar laws in any other state. 

 
 
III. Affiliation 
 
 The Village Improvement Association of Doylestown (the “Association”) is a nonprofit 

corporation whose mission is to continuously improve the quality of life and proactively 
advocate for the health and well-being of the individuals it serves. The Association 
controls the Doylestown Health Foundation (the “Foundation”). The Foundation (d/b/a 
“Doylestown Health”) controls Doylestown Hospital (the “Hospital”), VIA Affiliates (d/b/a 
“Doylestown Health Physicians”) and Doylestown Health and Wellness Center, Inc., a 
non-operating business corporation. The following briefly describes their activities: 

 
(1) The Foundation is a not-for-profit entity that raises the funds to support, and 

governs, the Hospital and the Association’s affiliates, and manages the restricted 
funds. The Foundation is also involved in community outreach programs in 
response to community health and human services needs.  

 
(2) Doylestown Hospital is a not-for-profit corporation that includes the operations 

of the Hospital and Pine Run Retirement Community. The two divisions operate 
within a single 501(c)(3) tax-exempt organization. The Hospital is a 239-bed 
acute care facility, located in Doylestown, Bucks County, Pennsylvania, and 
provides health care services to the surrounding community, including  
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III. Affiliation (continued) 
 

Doylestown Health Hospice and Doylestown Health Home Care. Doylestown 
Hospital also has an ownership interest and consolidates the following entities: 

 
 Doylestown Hospital established a wholly owned risk retention group domiciled 

in the State of South Carolina, Covered Bridge Reciprocal Risk Retention Group 
(“CBR RRG”), that was formed in June 2021. 
 

 Doylestown Hospital owns 50% of DR Cardiology LLC (“DR Cardiology”) for 
which it is the managing member.  

 
 Doylestown Health and Wellness Center, Inc. is a Pennsylvania business 

corporation, 100% of which stock is owned by the Foundation, and is currently 
not operational.  

 
 Doylestown Health Physicians is a tax-exempt organization whose purpose is to 

support the efforts of the Hospital in developing an integrated health care 
delivery system.  

 
IV. Location and Description of the Facility 
   
 The Pine Run Community is located in the "Delaware Valley" region, Doylestown 

Township, Bucks County, Pennsylvania. The Community has two locations of 
operations, both in Doylestown. The main Ferry Road campus of the Community is 
situated on approximately 43 acres in a suburban setting adjacent to Pine Run Lake and 
provides Independent Living, Personal Care/Memory Care, and Skilled Nursing services. 
In addition, Personal Care services are provided at our second location, Pine Run 
Lakeview, which is located on approximately 7 acres on Lower State Road, Doylestown, 
PA. 

 
 The Ferry Road Campus consists of 296 independent living units, a centrally located 

Community Center; arts and crafts barn including a wood shop; guest house; 
greenhouse; resident garden plots and administrative offices.  The Community Center 
includes fitness center, pool, auditorium, pub, library, card room, beauty salon, 
concierge, and business center, as well as areas for resident dining, recreation, 
meeting, and a country store.   

 
 The cottages are grouped into seventeen “clusters.”  Cluster neighborhoods are 

connected to each other by covered walkways which lead in a central direction and 
connect with the Community Center. Standard features in each cottage include a fully 
equipped kitchen, wireless emergency call system, wall-to-wall carpeting, vinyl flooring 
in the bathroom and kitchen, blinds on most windows and washer-dryers in all units.   



 
11 
 

IV. Location and Description of the Facility (continued) 

 
 In the spring of fiscal year 2017, work was started on the new Community Center.  With 

the completion of Phase 1 of the sprawling new 37,000 SF Community Center in August 
2018, we were then positioned to turn our attention to Phase 2. Amenities in this 
generous space opened in September 2019 spotlighting lively fun and professional 
instruction. The interactive aquatic and fitness center offers a multitude of classes 
fulfilling the dimensions of wellness. The state-of-the-art building provides fresh dining 
venues, meeting spaces, country store, library, pub, indoor pool, computer nook, 
gaming areas, and auditorium designed to meet both current and future Villager 
expectations. 

 
 Following the celebration of our 45th Anniversary in 2021, Pine Run continues to 

reinvest in the Ferry Road campus. Major initiatives this year include the planting of 
over 180 trees and shrubs in locations throughout our 45 acres that was generously 
funded through an anonymous donation, ongoing renovation of our cluster courtyards, 
and a new outdoor pavilion on the Health Center patio enhancing (and shading) outdoor 
visits and life enrichment. 

 
 The Ferry Road campus also includes the 5-Star Pine Run Health Center comprised of 

over 90,000 square feet. The comprehensive service area, handsomely renovated in 
2014-2015, includes 90 licensed skilled nursing beds (80 private and 10 semi-private) 
providing both short and long-term care and 40 personal care secure memory care beds 
(36 private and 4 semi-private). Other popular amenities include the Cottonwood Café, 
chapel, hair salon, and physician offices. 

   
 The Pine Run Lakeview campus, located three miles away in the Doylestown Township, 

features a 106-bed personal care home. Providing living accommodations for those 
individuals needing some additional daily assistance, Pine Run Lakeview also includes a 
community dining room, private dining room, activities areas, living rooms, interior 
courtyard, beauty salon, and outdoor gazebo overlooking a pond. The residence 
includes an intimate 13-bed secure memory care center. Lakeview enjoyed a significant 
renovation this past year featuring new carpet, paint, lighting, wallpaper, and finishes 
on both floors offering a fresh, elegant, and modern look and feel for residents, 
Associates, and guests.  
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V. Services & Amenities 
 
 The services provided at Pine Run Community include both residential and medical 

services.  (The respective Residency Agreements are an integral part of this Disclosure 
Statement and are attached only to the State copy as Appendix B).  The Provider will 
furnish the following services under the terms of the Villager Agreement at no additional 
charge.  A comparative table of services is also provided in Appendix A.  

  
 Note: some of these services were modified during COVID-19 pandemic in order to 

prevent infection spread and ensure resident safety. 
 

 Flexible dining program 
 Meal delivery service for residents during time of illness 
 Meal away credits 
 Recreational and education events and programming  
 On-site security 24 hours per day 
 On-site EMT coverage 24 hours a day 
 Emergency alert system in each cottage 
 Scheduled transportation in and around the community, and within certain 

 parameters within Doylestown 
 Laundry facilities in each cottage 
 Housekeeping services, including dusting, on a bi-weekly basis 
 Heavy cleaning service once per year 
 On-site parking accommodations 
 On-campus clinic and physician office hours 
 Basic grounds care, including lawn services and snow removal 
 Utilities services, including electricity, heat, air conditioning, water, sewer,  

 and property taxes 
 Maintenance and repair services for, and replacement of, community property 

 and living accommodations when necessary 
 

 Pine Run Community also offers additional services to residents and guests on a fee-for-
service or a la carte basis.  These services include, but are not limited to the following: 

 
 Additional meals as requested 
 Guest meals 
 Catering Services, including Special Events  
 Local phone service (required per Villager Agreement) and Internet 
 Carport/covered parking 
 In-home companion services 
 Private use of transportation 
 Beauty, Barber, Salon and Spa Services 
 Linen service upon request 
 Yellowwood Inn – guest suites 
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VI. FEES  
 
 Pine Run offers the option of three entrance plans to our new Residents.  Each entrance 

fee option is associated with a specific group of residences.  All Residents receive the 
same services and amenities noted above, regardless of which entrance fee option is 
elected.  Fees shown below are effective July 1, 2022. 

 
 Traditional Entrance Fee Plan 
  
 The Traditional Entrance Fee Plan provides for a Declining Refund Balance Plan over a 

period of 25 months. The entrance fee declines at 4% for each full or partial month of 
occupancy until the refund provision has fully expired.  All refunds are payable upon 
termination of the contract, conditioned upon re-occupancy of the apartment and 
collection of the new entry fee.  This plan is not available for our Fringetree Court 
residences. 

 
 The table below shows the entrance fee and monthly service fee amounts for single and 

double occupancy for all current Cottage models.   
 

Cottage Style 
Traditional 
 Entrance 

Fee 

          Monthly Fees 

Single 
Occupancy 

Double 
Occupancy 

The New Hope 525 sq. ft. Studio $95,000  $1,230  N/A 
The Furlong Terrace 647 sq. ft. One Bedroom $162,000  $1,720  $2,620  
The Furlong Deluxe 647 sq. ft. One Bedroom $169,000  $1,985  $2,885  
The Chalfont 647 sq. ft. One Bedroom $175,000  $2,290  $3,190  
The Chalfont Balcony 647 sq. ft. One Bedroom $182,000  $2,360  $3,260  
The Chalfont Vista 700 sq. ft. One Bedroom $196,000  $2,550  $3,450  
The Chalfont Loft 868 sq. ft. One Bedroom $252,000  $3,160  $4,060  
The Buckingham Standard 835 sq. ft. One Bedroom & Den $209,000  $3,205  $4,105  
The Buckingham Vista 985 sq. ft. One Bedroom & Den $247,000  $3,690  $4,590  
The Buckingham Deluxe 985 sq. ft. One Bedroom & Den $276,000  $3,795  $4,695  
The Warrington Terrace 1,023 sq. ft. Two Bedroom $195,000  $3,515  $4,415  
The Solebury New Orleans 1,300 sq. ft. Two Bedroom Plus $306,000  $4,495  $5,395  
The Solebury Deluxe 1,300 sq. ft. Two Bedroom Plus $338,000  $4,870  $5,770  
The Doylestown Cottage 1,600 sq. ft. Two Bedroom Plus $400,000  $5,495  $6,395  
The Bucks County Cottage 1,840 sq. ft. Three Bedroom $460,000  $6,315  $7,215  
The Doylestown Farmhouse 2,100 sq. ft. Two Bedroom Plus $525,000  $6,555  $7,455  
The Bucks County Farmhouse 2,340 sq. ft. Three Bedroom Plus $596,700  $7,305  $8,205  
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VI. FEES (continued) 
 
 Asset Preservation Entrance Fee Plan 
  
 The Asset Preservation Entrance Fee Plan is 100% refundable during the first 90 days 

of occupancy. After the first 90 days, the entrance fee is non-refundable. All refunds are 
payable upon termination of the contract, conditioned upon re-occupancy of the 
apartment and collection of the new entry fee.  This plan is not available for our 
Fringetree Court residences. 

 
 The table below shows the entrance fee and monthly service fee amounts for single and 

double occupancy for select Cottage models.  
 

Cottage Style 

Asset 
Preservation 

Entrance 
Fee 

          Monthly Fees 

Single 
Occupancy 

Double 
Occupancy 

The New Hope 525 sq. ft. Studio $37,000  $2,595  N/A 
The Furlong Terrace 647 sq. ft. One Bedroom $59,000  $2,905  $3,805  
The Furlong Deluxe 647 sq. ft. One Bedroom $65,000  $3,210  $4,110  
The Chalfont 647 sq. ft. One Bedroom $81,000  $3,860  $4,760  
The Chalfont Balcony 647 sq. ft. One Bedroom $83,000  $4,015  $4,915  
The Chalfont Vista 700 sq. ft. One Bedroom $90,000  $4,335  $5,235  
The Chalfont Loft 868 sq. ft. One Bedroom $113,000  $5,370  $6,270  
The Buckingham Standard 835 sq. ft. One Bedroom & Den $84,000  $4,665  $5,565  
The Buckingham Vista 985 sq. ft. One Bedroom & Den $99,000  $5,375  $6,275  
The Buckingham Deluxe 985 sq. ft. One Bedroom & Den $117,000  $5,525  $6,425  
The Warrington Terrace 1,023 sq. ft. Two Bedroom $74,000  $5,120  $6,020  
The Solebury New Orleans 1,200 sq. ft. Two Bedroom $174,000  $6,190  $7,090  
The Solebury Deluxe 1,300 sq. ft. Two Bedroom Plus $208,000  $6,375  $7,275  
The Doylestown Cottage 1,600 sq. ft. Two Bedroom Plus $256,000  $7,640  $8,540  
The Bucks County Cottage 1,840 sq. ft. Three Bedroom $295,000  $8,810  $9,710  

 

 
50% and 70% Refundable Entrance Fee Plan 

  
 The 50% and 70% Refundable Plans are offered to those Residents who select an 

apartment in our Fringetree Court complex.  All units in Fringetree are two bedroom 
apartments and are centrally located to the Community Center.  All refunds are payable 
at the termination of the contract, conditioned upon re-occupancy of the apartment and 
the receipt of the new entrance fee.  

 
 Shown below are the entrance fee amounts, as well as the monthly service fees for 

single and double occupancy for the four floor plans in our Fringetree Court complex.  
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VI. FEES (continued) 
 

Apartment Style 

Entry Fees Monthly Fees 
50% 

Refundable 
Entry Fee 

70% 
Refundable 
Entry Fee 

Single 
Occupancy 

Double 
Occupancy 

Plan A 1,026 sq. ft. Two bedroom $350,000  $455,000  $5,018  $5,918  
Plan B 1,116 sq. ft. Larger two bedroom $361,000  $466,000  $5,460  $6,360  
Plan C 1,386 sq. ft.Two bedroom & Study $416,000  $521,000  $6,776  $7,676  
Plan C1 1,521 sq. ft.Larger two bedroom & Study $438,000  $543,000  $7,436  $8,336  

    
 
 Personal Care 
 
 Pine Run offers various levels of Personal Care services, including secure Memory Care, 

in a variety of settings and locations that best fit and meet the needs and abilities of the 
Residents.  Below are examples of the unit styles and their associated fees.  For 
Residents of Pine Run who have already paid a Community or Entrance Fee in any 
setting, the Personal Care Community Fees are waived.  

 
  Pine Run Lakeview 

Personal Care Community 
Fee 

Daily Fee 

Private Suite $5,500  $180  
Companion Suite   
    1st Person $5,500  $180  
    2nd Person $5,500  $102  
Arbor Suite (Dementia/Memory Care) $5,500  $272  

 
  The Garden at the Pine Run Health Center 

Personal Care Community 
Fee 

Daily Fee 

Semi-Private $5,500  $220  
Private  $5,500  $247  
Suite $5,500  $303  

 
 Skilled Nursing Care 
 
 Pine Run also offers Skilled Nursing Care both for short-term rehabilitative and 

recuperative needs and for long-term care. Pine Run also participates in Medicare Part A 
and B; certain HMO and Pennsylvania Medical Assistance managed through Managed 
Care Organizations (MCOs). Private pay rates for semi-private and private 
accommodations are shown below. 
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VI. FEES (continued) 
 
  Pine Run Health Center 
 

Skilled Nursing Daily Fee 

Semi-Private Room $419  
Private Room $509  

 
 
 Rate Increase History 
 
 A representative historical trend of Daily and Monthly Fees and respective rate increases 

for the different contract types and levels of living are shown in the table below: 
 
 One Bedroom Cottage – Traditional Entrance Fee Plan 
 

Effective Date Per Month Percent % Amount 
July 1, 2023 $2,290  4.33% $95  
July 1, 2022 $2,195  2.75% $60  
July 1, 2020 $2,135  2.50% $60  
July 1, 2019 $2,075  3.10% $60  

 
 Two Bedroom Apartment – 50% & 70% Refundable Entrance Fee Plan 
 

Effective Date Per Month Percent % Amount 
July 1, 2022 $5,018  1.48% $73  
July 1, 2021 $4,945  2.75% $130  
July 1, 2020 $4,815  2.90% $135  
July 1, 2019 $4,680  3.10% $140  

 
 Lakeview – Semi Private 
 

Effective Date Per Day Percent % Amount 
July 1, 2023 $180  1.69% $3  
July 1, 2022 $177  1.10% $2  
July 1, 2020 $175  2.50% $5  
July 1, 2019 $170  3.00% $5  

 
 Health Center – Semi Private 
 

Effective Date Per Day Percent % Amount 
July 1, 2022 $419  2.95% $12  
July 1, 2021 $407  3.00% $12  
July 1, 2020 $395  0.00% $0  
July 1, 2019 $395  3.70% $14  
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VI. FEES (continued) 
 
 Personal Care Dementia – Private 
 

Effective Date Per Day Percent % Amount 
July 1, 2023 $247  0.82% $2  
July 1, 2022 $245  2.10% $5  
July 1, 2020 $240  0.00% $0  
July 1, 2019 $240  5.30% $12  

 
 
VII. Reserves  
 
 It is anticipated that operating income from all sources, including entrance fees, 

monthly fees and Health Center and Personal Care per diem fees will be sufficient to 
enable the Provider to meet its continuing care obligations, as determined on the basis 
of a formula required by the Pennsylvania Department of Insurance.  This formula takes 
into account the projected operating costs and debt service of the Provider and the 
proportional numbers of continuing care and non-continuing care residents in the 
Community.  At June 30, 2022, 196 of the 280 active residential contracts (70.00%) 
were continuing care agreements.  Application of the formula as approved by the 
Pennsylvania Insurance Department yields a Minimum Liquid Reserve Requirement of 
$2,772,839 and is included in the Assets Limited As to Use section of the Balance Sheet 
in the attached audited financial statements. 

 
FY 2023 

Pine Run Projected Annual Operating Expenses $39,611,976  
Minimum Rate 10% 
10% of Annual Operating Expenses $3,961,198  

Projected Debt Service Requirement $2,550,288  

Greater of Debt Service Requirement or 10% of $3,961,198  
     Annual Operating Expenses 
Percentage of Continuing Care Contracts 70.00% 
Minimum Liquid Reserve Requirement $2,772,839  
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VIII. Projected Revenue and Expense Summary – Fiscal Year 2023 
 

Revenues   
Independent Living   $                         11,560,541  
Health Center 16,888,121 
Lakeview 7,789,207 
Amortization of Deferred Entry Fees 3,294,989 
Other Revenues 2,715,431 

Total Revenues  $                       42,248,289  
Expenses   

Salaries  $                         20,882,590  
Benefits 3,717,650 
Physician Fees 38,400 
Supplies & Other 13,966,629 
Depreciation & Amortization 7,718,707 
Interest 988,108 

Total Expenses  $                       47,312,084  
Excess of (deficiency in) Revenues over Expenses  $                       (5,063,795) 

 
IX. Summary Comparison of Fiscal Year 2022 Projected Revenue and 

Expenses with Fiscal Year 2022 Actual Revenue and Expenses 
 
Revenues           Actual            Budget 

Residential Revenues  $                         11,528,928   $                11,441,418  
Health Center 14,496,282 15,720,432 
Lakeview 7,259,900 7,520,525 
Amortization of Deferred Revenues 3,161,724 3,198,662 
Other Revenues 2,359,688 2,710,152 

Total Revenues  $                         38,806,523   $                40,591,189  

Expenses 
Salaries  $                         18,695,243   $                18,178,149  
Benefits 3,269,605  3,516,323  
Physician Fees 38,400  38,400  
Supplies & Other 13,234,353  13,063,849  
Depreciation & Amortization 7,484,293  7,635,569  
Interest 991,431  982,032  

Total Expenses  $                         43,713,323   $                43,414,322  
Operating Income (Loss)  $                         (4,906,800)  $                 (2,823,133) 
Other Income & (Losses)     
Excess of (deficiency in) Revenues 
over Expenses 

 $                         (4,906,800)  $                 (2,823,133) 
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IX. Summary Comparison of Fiscal Year 2022 Projected Revenue and 
Expenses with Fiscal Year 2022 Actual Revenue and Expenses - 
Narrative 
 

 Occupancy 
Pine Run Independent Living averaged 278 occupied residences or 96% occupancy rate 
during fiscal year 2022. This result was on average 1 residence higher than budget and 
7 residences higher than the previous year, paving the road to recovery from COVID-19 
pandemic impact on occupancy.  
 
Personal Care is provided in two locations within our continuum. Pine Run Lakeview 
averaged 95 of 106 residences occupied, or 89% occupancy rate during the fiscal year. 
The Garden at the Pine Run Health Center provides Personal Care to residents in a 
secure memory care environment.  The Occupancy in the Garden averaged 23 
residencies per day, or 58% occupancy rate. Occupancy in our Personal Care locations 
improved by 4% compared to the previous fiscal year, sign of recovery from the 
COVID-19 pandemic.  

 
Heath Center Skilled Nursing occupancy for fiscal year 2022 also improved compared to 
the previous year although budget goals were not met due to pandemic challenges and 
staff shortages.  There were, on average, 76 residents per day in 90 available beds 
during fiscal year 2022.  Skilled Nursing provides Long Term Care (49 beds); Palliative 
Care (8 beds); and Short Term Rehabilitation (33 beds) to Villagers and residents of the 
Pine Run Community, as well as the greater Doylestown and surrounding area.  

 
Revenues 

 For fiscal year 2022, total operating revenues were 4.4% less than budgeted, but 7.2% 
improvement over the prior fiscal year. 
 
Key factors contributing to the revenue variance against budgets, by level of living, are 
listed below. 
 

o Independent Living revenues in fiscal year 2022 were favorable to budget by 
2%. Key factors for the revenue increase were $435,000 insurance proceeds 
for storm Ida. These revenues were offset by $538,000 expenses incurred to 
repair storm damages. 

 
o Pine Run Lakeview revenues were 5% less than budget, but 9% higher than 

the previous year.  The key driver for the unfavorable budget variance was 
lower than budgeted occupancy due to the ongoing pandemic. 
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IX. Summary Comparison of Fiscal Year 2022 Projected Revenue and 
Expenses with Fiscal Year 2022 Actual Revenue and Expenses – 
Narrative – (continued) 

 
 

o Pine Run Health Center revenues were 11% lower than budgeted, but 7.5% 
greater than the prior fiscal year. The unfavorable budget variance was due to 
lower than targeted occupancy in Skilled Nursing and Garden Personal Care.  

 
Expenses 
For fiscal year 2022, operating expenses were over budget by $299,000 or 0.7%.  Key 
variances compared to budget are listed below. 
 
o Salaries & Wages were unfavorable to budget by 2.8% for the year due to 

increased labor costs in direct care and dining services. 
 

o Fringe Benefits were 7% favorable to budget due lower than budgeted group 
insurance enrollments as well as lower unemployment compensation and 
worker’s compensation expenses. 

 
o Drugs were 18% below budget due to lower than targeted occupancy in the 

Health Center. 
 

o Repairs and Maintenance costs were 10.6% unfavorable to budget mainly due 
to additional costs in Plant Operations and Grounds departments contracted 
services and vacant positions. Utilities were lower than budget due to $46,000 
snow removal costs less than budgeted this year. 

 
o Other Expenses were 19.5% favorable to budget. The main contributors were 

savings in SNF consolidated billing expenses (labs, radiology, etc.) and 
marketing expenses. 

 
o Insurance costs were 80.2% unfavorable to budget due to $538,000 storm Ida 

costs. Insurance proceeds to offset the damages were $435,000. 
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X. CERTIFIED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
     
 Attached you will find the Audited Financial Statements for Doylestown Hospital, 

including Pine Run, for our fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.    



GT.COM Grant Thornton LLP is the U.S. member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and each of its member firms 
are separate legal entities and are not a worldwide partnership.     

GRANT THORNTON LLP 

Two Commerce Square 
2001 Market St., Suite 700 

Philadelphia, PA 19103-7065 

D     +1 215 561 4200 

F     +1 215 561 1066 

Board of Trustees 
Doylestown Hospital and 
Advisory Committee 
Pine Run Retirement Community 
(a division of Doylestown Hospital) 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, the consolidated financial statements of Village 
Improvement Association of Doylestown, which includes the Pine Run Retirement 
Community division (the “Company”), as of June 30, 2022 and for the year then 
ended, and have issued our report thereon dated September 23, 2022. In connection 
with that report, we advise you as follows: 

We are independent certified public accountants with respect to the Company and 
conform to the standards of the accounting profession as contained in the Code of 
Professional Conduct and pronouncements of the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants, and the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Pennsylvania 
Board of Public Accountancy. 

The engagement partner and engagement manager, who are certified public 
accountants, have 15 years and 5 years, respectively, of experience in public 
accounting and are experienced in auditing continuing care retirement communities. 
Members of the engagement team, most of whom have had experience in auditing 
continuing care retirement communities and are certified public accountants, were 
assigned to perform tasks commensurate with their training and experience. 

We understand that the Company intends to file its audited consolidated financial 
statements and our report thereon with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Insurance 
Department (the “Department”) and that the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 
Insurance Commissioner will be relying on that information in monitoring and 
regulating the financial condition of the Company. 

Our audit was not planned to satisfy all objectives or responsibilities of insurance 
regulators. In this context, the Company and insurance department personnel should 
understand that the objectives of an audit of financial statements in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States is to form an opinion and 
issue a report on whether the financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position, results of operations and changes in net assets, and 
cash flows in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Consequently, under auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, we have the responsibility, within the inherent limitations of 
the audit process, to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether caused 
by error or fraud, and to exercise due professional care in the conduct of the audit.  

PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE QUALIFICATION LETTER 



  

The concept of selective testing of the data being audited, which involves judgment 
both as to the number of transactions to be audited and the areas to be tested, has 
been generally accepted as a valid and sufficient basis for an auditor to express an 
opinion on financial statements. Audit procedures that are effective for detecting 
errors, if they exist, may be ineffective for detecting misstatements resulting from 
fraud. Because of the characteristics of fraud, particularly those involving concealment 
and falsified documentation (including forgery), a properly planned and performed 
audit may not detect a material misstatement resulting from fraud. In addition, an audit 
does not address the possibility that material errors or misstatements caused by fraud 
may occur in the future. Also, our use of professional judgment and the assessment of 
materiality for the purpose of our audit means that matters may exist that would have 
been assessed differently by insurance commissioners. 

It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to adopt sound accounting 
policies, to maintain an adequate and effective system of accounts and to establish 
and maintain internal control that will, among other things, provide reasonable, but not 
absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use 
or disposition and that transactions are executed in accordance with management’s 
authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

The Department personnel and other state insurance commissioners should exercise 
due diligence to obtain whatever other information that may be necessary for the 
purpose of monitoring and regulating the financial position of continuing care 
retirement communities and should not rely solely upon our report. 

We will retain the workpapers prepared in the conduct of our audit, including 
communications between the Company and us that provide a basis for our 
conclusions drawn in the audit report and our engagement letter, for seven years after 
the year reported on. We include in our workpapers (both paper and electronic) those 
documents that provide a basis for our conclusions drawn in the audit report. After 
notification to the Company, we will make the workpapers available for review by the 
Department at the offices of the Company, at our offices, at the Department, or at any 
other reasonable place designated by the Insurance Commissioner. Furthermore, in 
the conduct of the aforementioned periodic review by the Department, photocopies (or 
printouts of electronic files) of pertinent audit workpapers may be made (under our 
control), and such copies may be retained by the Department. 

This is the first year the engagement partner has served in that capacity with respect 
to the Company. The engagement partner is licensed by the State Board of 
Accountancy of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and is a member in good 
standing with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we are in compliance with the requirements 
of the rules and regulations of the Department regarding qualifications of independent 
certified public accountants. 



  

This letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Department and other 
state insurance departments and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

 

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 
September 23, 2022 
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GT.COM Grant Thornton LLP is the U.S. member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and each of its member firms 
are separate legal entities and are not a worldwide partnership. 

Board of Trustees 
Village Improvement Association of Doylestown and Controlled Entities 

Opinion 
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Village Improvement 
Association of Doylestown and Controlled Entities (the “Association”), which comprise 
the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related 
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets and cash flows for 
the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in 
all material respects, the financial position of the Association as of June 30, 2022 and 
2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audits of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (“US GAAS”). 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
required to be independent of the Association and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our 
audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to 
evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 
raise substantial doubt about the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern 
for one year after the date the consolidated financial statements are issued. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
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fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the 
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a 
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association’s 
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in 
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Association’s ability to 
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit 
findings, and certain internal control–related matters that we identified during the 
audit. 



 

 

 

 

Supplementary information 
The accompanying consolidating balance sheets as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and 
the related consolidating statements of operations and changes in net assets for the 
years then ended are presented for purposes of additional analysis, rather than to 
present the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of the individual 
entities, and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such 
supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from 
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and 
certain additional procedures. These additional procedures included comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole. 

 

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 
September 23, 2022 

 



2022 2021
ASSETS

Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 35,666,981$      25,590,772$      
Short-term investments 364,539             19,908,121        
Assets limited as to use 11,460,233        10,166,089        
Patient accounts receivable 45,286,685        43,408,577        
Due from affiliated entities -                         113,346             
Supplies 11,092,599        9,793,799          
Other current assets 15,390,917        13,198,185        

Total current assets 119,261,954      122,178,889      

Assets limited as to use
Internally designated:

By Board of Trustees 54,108,890        86,491,887        
By Board of Trustees - for donor purposes 7,516,770          6,718,838          

61,625,660        93,210,725        
Externally designated:
   Debt agreements 6,011,009          16,609,545        
   Resident agreements 134,600             273,800             
   Statutory insurance requirements 1,125,000          1,125,000          

7,270,609          18,008,345        

Total assets limited as to use, net of current portion 68,896,269        111,219,070      

Investments 27,894,113        37,761,734        
Property, plant and equipment, net 289,854,130      281,592,427      
Right-of-use assets, operating leases 47,080,861        53,421,536        
Other assets 21,463,736        17,755,308        
Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts 11,061,351        13,824,615        

Total assets 585,512,414$    637,753,579$    

Village Improvement Association of Doylestown and Controlled Entities

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2022 2021
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities 
Current portion of long-term debt 3,465,000$        5,025,000$        
Current portion of finance lease obligations 483,832             466,749             
Current portion of operating lease obligations 5,816,581          6,459,879          
Current portion of insurance claims liabilities 4,257,474          5,403,284          
Current portion of accrued retirement benefits 859,893             626,657             
Accounts payable 46,279,475        42,173,755        
Accrued salaries and payroll taxes 18,490,986        17,268,736        
Accrued vacation 11,609,570        11,015,785        
Other liabilities 6,090,332          6,267,095          
Estimated settlements to third-party payors, net 12,441,033        35,389,404        

Total current liabilities 109,794,176      130,096,344      

Long-term debt, net of current portion 212,892,007      202,148,924      
Finance lease obligations, net of current portion 977,395             1,461,227          
Operating lease obligations, net of current portion 42,565,465        47,720,232        
Interest rate swaps 5,588,204          13,014,539        
Insurance claims liabilities, net of current portion 11,558,128        11,198,492        
Accrued retirement benefits, net of current portion 18,868,753        25,922,477        
Refundable entry fees 7,788,475          7,201,300          
Deferred entry fees 21,336,834        20,616,715        
Other liabilities 219,377             241,451             

Total liabilities 431,588,814      459,621,701      

Net assets 
Without donor restrictions
    Village Improvement Association of Doylestown 122,507,595      149,189,500      
    Noncontrolling interests (886,171)            -                         

121,621,424      149,189,500      

With donor restrictions 32,302,176        28,942,378        

TOTAL NET ASSETS 153,923,600      178,131,878      

Total liabilities and net assets 585,512,414$    637,753,579$    

June 30, 

Village Improvement Association of Doylestown and Controlled Entities

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS - CONTINUED

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2022 2021
Net assets without donor restrictions

Revenue
Patient service revenue 388,097,719$      361,487,276$       
Amortization of deferred entry fees 3,161,724            2,882,597             
Other revenue 38,782,658          53,469,086           
Gifts and bequests 1,592,852            2,491,639             

Total revenue 431,634,953        420,330,598         

Expenses 
Salaries and wages 230,155,298        204,045,981         
Employee benefits 33,665,379          29,817,381           
Professional fees 4,962,966            4,186,337             
Supplies and other expenses 161,807,400        146,152,193         
Depreciation and amortization 25,790,160          24,844,751           
Interest 9,921,608            9,481,985             

Total expenses 466,302,811        418,528,628         

Operating (loss) income (34,667,858)        1,801,970             

Other income and (losses)
Investment (loss) income, net (7,331,588)          17,754,129           
Other accrued retirement costs (2,536,875)          (3,927,888)           
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps 7,426,335            6,107,812             

(Deficiency in) excess of revenue and other income over 
expenses and other losses (37,109,986)        21,736,023           

Deficiency in revenue and other income over expenses and
  other losses attributed to noncontrolling interests 886,171               -                           

(Deficiency in) excess of revenue and other income over expenses 
   and other losses attributed to Village Improvement Association 
   of Doylestown (36,223,815)        21,736,023           

Other changes in net assets without donor restrictions -
Village Improvement Association of Doylestown
Net assets released from restrictions for property, plant and equipment 1,474,151            6,828,248             
Other -                          (650)                     
Other changes in accrued retirement benefits 8,067,134            11,920,766           

(Decrease) increase in net assets without donor restrictions (26,682,530)        40,484,387           

Noncontrolling interests
Deficiency of revenues and other income over expenses and other losses
    attributed to noncontrolling interests (886,171)             -                           

Decease in net assets without donor restrictions - 
noncontrolling interests (886,171)             -                           

Net assets with donor restrictions
Restricted contributions 13,721,004          8,890,208             
Investment (loss) income, net (39,895)               472,549               
Change in beneficial interests in perpetual trusts (2,763,264)          2,373,481             
Other (75,737)               (9,692)                  
Net assets released from restrictions (7,481,685)          (12,178,088)         

Increase (decrease) in net assets with donor restrictions 3,360,423            (451,542)              

(DECREASE) INCREASE IN NET ASSETS (24,208,278)        40,032,845           

Net assets, beginning of year 178,131,878        138,099,033         

Net assets, end of year 153,923,600$      178,131,878$       

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Years ended June 30,

Village Improvement Association of Doylestown and Controlled Entities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2022 2021
Operating activities:

(Decrease) increase in net assets (24,208,278)$          40,032,845$           
Adjustments to reconcile (decrease) increase in net assets to net cash 

(used in) provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 25,790,160             24,844,751             
Amortization of deferred entry fees (3,161,724)              (2,882,597)              
Amortization of bond premium (682,133)                 (748,375)                 
Other changes in accrued retirement benefits (8,067,134)              (11,920,766)            
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment -                               334,776                  
Loss on joint ventures 1,389,664               757,933                  
Net realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments 15,595,073             (14,230,568)            
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps (7,426,335)              (6,107,812)              
Restricted contributions (13,721,004)            (8,890,208)              
Change in beneficial interests in perpetual trusts 2,763,264               (2,373,481)              
Changes in certain assets and liabilities:  

Patient accounts receivable (1,878,108)              (7,238,946)              
Due from affiliated entities 113,346                  (2,208)                     
Supplies (1,298,800)              (1,499,229)              
Other assets (5,873,289)              (5,719,597)              
Accounts payable 6,830,119               6,129,929               
Accrued salaries, payroll taxes and vacation 1,816,035               6,349,775               
Estimated settlements to third-party payors (23,734,545)            (3,371,760)              
Operating leases 542,610                  758,575                  
Refundable entry fees 587,175                  149,220                  
Deferred entry fees 3,881,843               5,570,259               
Other liabilities 1,047,809               2,839,801               

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (29,694,252)            22,782,317             

Investing activities: 
Purchases of property, plant and equipment, net (33,620,199)            (36,412,025)            
Sales of assets limited as to use and investments 128,279,381           65,688,843             
Purchases of assets limited as to use and investments (73,434,594)            (77,953,668)            
Investments in joint ventures (1,640,000)              -                               
Distributions received from joint ventures 81,618                     1,706,417               

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 19,666,206             (46,970,433)            

Financing activities: 
Repayment of long-term debt (4,325,000)              (5,165,000)              
Repayment of finance lease obligations (466,749)                 (416,432)                 
Restricted contributions 13,721,004             8,890,208               
Proceeds from line of credit 11,175,000             3,000,000               

Net cash provided by financing activities 20,104,255             6,308,776               

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 10,076,209             (17,879,340)            

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 25,590,772             43,470,112             

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 35,666,981$           25,590,772$           

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest paid, net of capitalized interest 8,579,151$             9,764,424$             

Change in accrual of construction payable included in accounts payable (275,601)$               5,004,293$             

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended June 30,

Village Improvement Association of Doylestown and Controlled Entities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Village Improvement Association of Doylestown and Controlled Entities 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 and 2021 

10 

NOTE A - ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The Village Improvement Association of Doylestown (the “Association”) is a nonprofit corporation whose 
mission is to continuously improve the quality of life and proactively advocate for the health and well-being 
of the individuals it serves. The Association controls the Doylestown Health Foundation (the “Foundation”). 
The Foundation (d/b/a “Doylestown Health”) controls Doylestown Hospital (the “Hospital”), VIA Affiliates 
(d/b/a “Doylestown Health Physicians”) and Doylestown Health and Wellness Center, Inc., a non-operating 
business corporation. The following briefly describes their activities:  

 The Foundation is a not-for-profit entity that raises the funds to support, and governs, the Hospital 
and the Association’s affiliates, and manages the restricted funds. The Foundation is also involved 
in community outreach programs in response to community health and human services needs.  

 The Hospital is a not-for-profit corporation that includes the operations of the Hospital and Pine Run 
Retirement Community (“Pine Run”). The two divisions operate within a single 501(c)(3) tax-exempt 
organization. The Hospital is a 239-bed acute care facility, located in Doylestown, Bucks County, 
Pennsylvania, and provides health care services to the surrounding community, including 
Doylestown Health Hospice and Doylestown Health Home Care. Pine Run consists of a 90-bed 
skilled nursing facility and 40-bed personal care facility (the “Health Center”) and 291 independent 
living units (the “Village”) on 43 acres of land in Doylestown, Bucks County, Pennsylvania; and a 
106-bed personal care facility (“Lakeview”) located on a separate, approximately 7-acre campus in 
Doylestown, Bucks County, Pennsylvania. Doylestown Hospital also has an ownership interest and 
consolidates the following entities: 

 Doylestown Hospital established a wholly owned risk retention group domiciled in the State of 
South Carolina, Covered Bridge Reciprocal Risk Retention Group (“CBR RRG”), that was formed 
in June 2021. 

 Doylestown Hospital owns 50% of DR Cardiology LLC (“DR Cardiology”) for which it is the 
managing member.  

 Doylestown Health and Wellness Center, Inc. is a Pennsylvania business corporation, 100% of which 
stock is owned by the Foundation, and is currently not operational.  

 Doylestown Health Physicians is a tax-exempt organization whose purpose is to support the efforts 
of the Hospital in developing an integrated health care delivery system.  

Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(“US GAAP”).  

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

Principles of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements of the Association include the accounts of the Foundation, the 
Hospital, including Pine Run, the Wellness Center, and Doylestown Health Physicians (collectively, 
“Doylestown Health”). All significant intercompany or divisional balances and transactions have been 
eliminated. The noncontrolling interests of DR Cardiology, is reported as a component of net assets, and 
the deficiency in revenue and other income over expenses and other losses attributable to noncontrolling 
interests is reported separately on the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.   
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Use of Estimates 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements. Estimates also affect 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The most significant 
management estimates and assumptions are related to the determination of patient accounts receivable 
and patient service revenue, useful lives of property, plant and equipment, actuarial estimates for the 
postretirement benefit plans, self-insured reserves, fair value of interest rate swap agreements, imputed 
interest rates for certain leases, and the reported fair values of certain assets and liabilities. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates.  

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

Financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, patient accounts receivable, assets limited as 
to use, accounts payable, interest rate swaps, and long-term debt. The carrying amounts reported in the 
consolidated balance sheets for cash and cash equivalents, patient accounts receivable, assets limited as 
to use, accounts payable, and interest rate swaps approximate fair value. Management’s estimates of the 
fair value of other financial instruments are described elsewhere in the notes to the consolidated financial 
statements.  

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash balances and highly liquid investments purchased with original 
maturities of three months or less at the date of purchase. Temporary cash investments are with financial 
institutions, at times, such amounts may be in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limits. 

Short Term Investments 

Short term investments consist of funds deposited to a cash reserve fund for the purpose of maintaining 
liquidity while generating short term investment return.  

Patient Accounts Receivable 

Patient accounts receivable are recorded when there is an unconditional right to payment, subject only to 
the passage of time. Patient accounts receivable, including billed accounts and unbilled accounts, which 
have the unconditional right to payment, and estimated amounts due from third-party payors for retroactive 
adjustments, are recorded as receivables since the right to consideration is unconditional and only the 
passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is due. The estimated uncollectible 
amounts are generally considered implicit price concessions that are recorded as a direct reduction to 
patient accounts receivable. 

Supplies 

Supplies are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market value. 

Assets Limited as to Use and Investment Income 

Assets limited as to use include assets set aside by the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) for specific purposes 
including property, plant and equipment and expansion, and to meet donor imposed restrictions. The Board 
retains control over designated assets and may, at its discretion, subsequently use the assets for other 
purposes. Certain assets limited as to use are held in trust by external parties for future property, plant and 
equipment replacement and expansion, in conjunction with the terms of debt agreements, resident 
agreements and statutory insurance requirements. 
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Investments in debt and equity securities are measured at fair value based on quoted market prices. 
Investment income, realized gains and losses, and changes in net unrealized gains and losses are recorded 
as other income and losses or restricted investment income, if the donor or legislation restricts such income. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Donated assets are recorded at their fair value at the 
date of donation. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of each depreciable asset and is 
computed using the straight-line method. Property, plant and equipment under finance leases is amortized 
on the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the equipment. 
Such amortization is included in depreciation and amortization in the consolidated financial statements. 
Interest costs incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction on capital assets are capitalized 
as a component of the costs of acquiring those assets. For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, 
$1,271,141 and $1,810,853 of interest was capitalized, respectively. Upon sale or retirement of depreciable 
property, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the related accounts and 
resulting gains or losses are reflected in other income and losses.  

Useful lives are based on the following ranges for each type of asset:  

Land improvements 5 - 20 years 
Buildings 20 - 35 years 
Fixed equipment 5 - 25 years 
Movable equipment 5 - 20 years 
 
Leases 

Doylestown Health determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception of the contract. Right-of-use 
(“ROU”) assets represent the right to use the underlying assets for the lease term and lease liabilities 
represent the Doylestown Health’s obligation to make lease payments arising from the leases. ROU assets 
and lease liabilities are recognized at commencement date based on the present value of lease payments 
over the lease term. Doylestown Health uses an estimated incremental borrowing rate, which is derived 
from information available at the lease commencement date, in determining the present value of lease 
payments. The incremental borrowing rate is determined based on information obtained from bankers, 
secured debt fair value and publicly available data for instruments with similar characteristics.  

Operating leases are primarily for real estate, including off-campus outpatient facilities, medical office 
buildings, and corporate and other administrative offices, as well as medical and office equipment. Finance 
leases are for equipment. The real estate lease agreements typically have initial terms of five to ten years, 
and equipment lease agreements typically have initial terms of three to five years. Doylestown Health does 
not record leases with an initial term of 12 months or less (“short-term leases”) in its consolidated balance 
sheets. 

Real estate leases may include one or more options to renew, with renewals that typically can extend the 
lease term from five to ten years. The exercise of lease renewal options is at Doylestown Health’s sole 
discretion. In general, Doylestown Health does not consider renewal options to be reasonably likely to be 
exercised, therefore, renewal options are generally not recognized as part of right of use assets and lease 
liabilities. The useful life of assets and leasehold improvements are limited by the expected lease term, 
unless there is a transfer of title or purchase option reasonably certain of exercise. The majority of the 
medical equipment leases have terms of three years with no renewal options or bargain purchase options, 
so these assets are depreciated over their lease term. 

Certain lease agreements for real estate include payments based on actual common area maintenance 
expenses. These variable lease payments are recognized as other operating expenses in the consolidated 
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statements of operations and changes in net assets, but are not included in the ROU asset or liability 
balances. The lease agreements do not contain any material residual value guarantees, restrictions or 
covenants. 

Long-Lived Assets 

Doylestown Health continually evaluates whether events and circumstances have occurred that indicate 
the remaining estimated useful life of long-lived assets may warrant revision, or that the remaining balance 
may not be recoverable. When factors indicate that long-lived assets should be evaluated for possible 
impairment, an estimate of the related undiscounted operating income over the remaining life of the 
long-lived asset in measuring whether the long-lived asset is recoverable is used. The impairment loss on 
these assets is measured as the excess of the carrying amount of the asset over its fair value. Fair value 
is based on market prices, where available, or discounted cash flows. At June 30, 2022 and 2021, 
management believes that no revisions to the remaining useful lives or write-down of long-lived assets are 
required.  

Deferred Financing Fees 

Deferred financing fees, included in long-term debt on the consolidated balance sheets, are amortized over 
the period the related debt is outstanding, using the effective interest method.  

Beneficial Interests in Perpetual Trusts 

Beneficial interests in perpetual trusts are assets held by third parties and have been recorded at their fair 
value at the date of the gift. Unrealized gains and losses are recognized as additions/deductions to net 
assets with donor restrictions. The trusts are perpetual in nature and the original corpus cannot be violated. 
Income (loss) from these trusts is included in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net 
assets as follows: 

 Years Ended June 30, 

 2022 2021 

Net assets without donor restrictions   
Other revenue $ - $ 170,344 

Investment income 314,952 337,360 

   
 314,952 507,704 
   
Net assets with donor restrictions   

Investment income 199,668 36,700 

Change in beneficial interests in perpetual trusts (2,763,264) 2,373,481 

   
 $ (2,248,644) $ 2,917,885 

 
Pledges Receivable 

Pledges receivable, less allowance for uncollectible amounts, are recorded in the year pledged and are 
included in other current assets and other assets on the consolidated balance sheets. A majority of the 
pledges receivable are for ongoing capital campaigns. 
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Pledges receivable are recorded at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discounts on 
these amounts are computed using the borrowing rate for the year in which the promise is received. 
Amortization of the discount is included in restricted contributions in net assets with donor restrictions.  

The allowance for uncollectible contributions is based on experience in past fundraising campaigns.  

 June 30, 

 2022 2021 
   
One year $ 5,887,585 $ 5,043,720 
Two to five years 9,171,525 4,305,801 
   

Total 15,059,110 9,349,521 
   
Less: Discount on pledges receivable (286,159) (133,110) 
Allowance for uncollectible contributions (168,652) (147,706) 
   

 $ 14,604,299 $ 9,068,705 

 
Charity Care 

Doylestown Health provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy without 
charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Unreimbursed charges from medical assistance 
programs on behalf of patients that meet the charity care criteria are also considered charity care. 
Doylestown Health does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, and 
establishes reserves for these amounts. Accordingly, such amounts are not reported as revenue in the 
accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.  

The amount of estimated cost, based on cost accounting data, for services and supplies furnished under 
the charity care policy, is summarized in the following table: 

 Years Ended June 30, 

 2022 2021 
   
Unreimbursed charges from Medical Assistance programs $ 10,407,752 $ 9,254,925 
Free care and financial assistance 1,702,021 1,481,832 
   

 $ 12,109,773 $ 10,736,757 

 
Patient Service Revenue 

Doylestown Health has agreements with third-party payors, including commercial insurance carriers and 
health maintenance organizations, which provide payments at amounts different from its established rates. 
Payment arrangements include prospectively determined rates per discharge, capitated payments, 
reimbursed costs, discounted charges and per diem payments.  

Patient service revenue is reported at the amounts that reflect the consideration to which Doylestown Health 
is expected to be entitled to in exchange for providing patient care.  These amounts are due from patients, 
third-party payors (including managed care organizations and government programs, i.e., Medicare and 
Medicaid), and others and they include variable consideration for retroactive adjustments due to settlement 
of future audits, reviews, and investigations. Retroactive adjustments are considered in the recognition of 
revenue on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered, and such amounts are 
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adjusted in future periods as adjustments become known or as years are no longer subject to such audits, 
reviews, and investigations.  Generally, patients and third-party payors are billed several days after the 
services are performed or shortly after discharge. Patient service revenue is recognized in the period in 
which the performance obligations are satisfied under contracts by transferring services to patients. 

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided. Revenues are 
recognized for performance obligations satisfied over time based on actual charges incurred in relation to 
total expected charges. Doylestown Health believes that this method provides an appropriate depiction of 
the transfer of services over the term of performance obligations based on the inputs needed to satisfy the 
obligations. Generally, performance obligations are satisfied over time related to patients receiving inpatient 
acute care services. Performance obligations are measured from admission to the point when there are no 
further services required for the patient, which is generally the time of discharge. Doylestown Health 
recognizes revenues for performance obligations satisfied at a point in time, which generally relate to 
patients receiving outpatient services, when: (1) services are provided; and (2) when it is believed the 
patient does not require additional services. 

Pine Run patient service revenue consists of revenue from the Health Center and Lakeview.  Revenues for 
nursing and personal care services rendered by the Health Center are recognized consistently with the 
Hospital’s recognition methodology. 

Lakeview charges a daily rate for services, which varies based on the size of unit occupied, level of care, 
and anticipated length of stay. The predominant payor source for Lakeview is private pay. Daily charges 
are billed monthly, and charges are recognized as income in the month that they are earned and daily 
performance obligations are performed. 

Other Revenue 

Pine Run charges residents a monthly service fee which varies according to the size of the living space 
occupied and the type of agreement. The agreement includes living space, utilities, some meals, 
housekeeping, and transportation services. Monthly service fees are recognized as income when due. 

As of November 2020, Pine Run offers a non-refundable entry fee contract in addition to the traditional 
declining refundable balance entry fee contract for its cottages. The non-refundable entry fee is not subject 
to amortization during the first ninety (90) days of occupancy. After the ninety (90)-day period, the entry fee 
becomes nonrefundable. The declining balance entry fee is amortized at the rate of four percent (4%) for 
each full or partial month of occupancy for a period of twenty-five (25) months from the date the occupancy. 
Both entry fee plans are amortized into operating revenue prorated over the actuarially determined lives of 
each resident or couple, adjusted annually.  At June 30, 2022, there were 209 residents residing in 
172 cottages under the non-refundable and declining refundable balance agreements.  

Effective November 2020, Pine Run also offers a 70% refundable entry fee contract, in addition to the 
traditional 90% refundable entry fee contract for certain units. The 30% and 10% respective nonrefundable 
portions of the original entry fees are amortized into operating revenue prorated over the actuarially 
determined lives of each resident or couple, adjusted annually. The remaining 70% and 90% are not 
included in the transaction price with the resident and are recorded as a non-current liability on the 
consolidated balance sheets. As of June 30, 2022, there were 33 residents residing in 24 apartments with 
the 70% and 90% refundable entrance fee contracts 

At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the portion of deferred entry fee revenue subject to such refund provisions 
under these contracts, which is presented as part of deferred entry fees on the consolidated balance sheet, 
amounted to $19,808,487 and $18,515,064, respectively. 
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Community fee and architectural upgrade agreements are no longer offered as an option. As of June 30, 
2022 and 2021, there were $1,528,347 and $2,101,651, respectively, of deferred community and 
architectural fees recorded as part of deferred entry fees on the consolidated balance sheet. 

Residential services revenues also include revenue generated from supplies and services, which are 
provided to residents, but not expressly included in the residency agreements, and are recognized as the 
services are rendered. Examples of these include, but are not limited to, extra meals, transportation, 
convenience store, barber and beauty shop, medical supplies, companion services, cable television, 
telephone service, unit customization and upgrade charges, and reserved parking. 

Deposits 

Deposits from prospective residents of Pine Run are required for apartment units as part of a Wait List 
Program. At June 30, 2022 and 2021, cash balances of $214,000 and $182,000, respectively, related to 
refundable deposits are included in other liabilities. Deposits for the Wait List Program may be refundable 
or nonrefundable based on the prospective resident’s desired priority on the Wait List.  

Refundable portions of entry fees received for both active and terminated fee-for-service contracts are 
recorded  as refundable entry fees on the consolidated balance sheet until the date of occupancy. Deposits 
of $7,788,475 and $7,201,300 were recorded as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

Reserve for Insurance Claims 

Doylestown Health is self-insured for claims after July 1, 2021 through its insurance captive CBR RRG.  
Claims prior to this date are covered through claims-made malpractice insurance coverage through a 
commercial insurance carrier and a group trust for workers’ compensation coverage. Estimated liabilities 
relating to asserted and unasserted claims are recorded by Doylestown Health as a reserve for insurance 
claims in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The estimate for unreported incidents and losses 
is actuarially determined based on Doylestown Health specific and industry experience data. Receivables 
for expected insurance recoveries are included in other assets on the accompanying consolidated balance 
sheets. 

Derivatives 

Doylestown Health recognizes all derivative financial instruments in the consolidated balance sheets at fair 
value. Management has determined that interest rate swap agreements do not qualify as hedges for 
financial reporting purposes. Consequently, the changes in the fair value of interest rate swap agreements 
are included as a component of excess of revenue and other income over expenses and other losses in 
the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.  

The interest rate swap agreements are used to manage interest rate exposures and to hedge the changes 
in cash flows on variable rate revenue bonds. Derivative financial instruments involve, to a varying degree, 
elements of market and credit risk. The market risk associated with these instruments resulting from interest 
rate movements is expected to offset the market risk of the liability being hedged.  
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Net Assets with Donor Restrictions 

Net assets with donor restrictions represent those whose use have been limited by donors to a specific time 
period or purpose, or that have been restricted by donors to be maintained in perpetuity with income to 
support services in accordance with donor stipulations. Gains and losses on investments are reported as 
increases or decreases in net assets without donor restrictions unless restricted by donor stipulations or 
law. As the donors’ intentions are met, the net assets are reclassified to without donor restrictions and 
reported in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets as other revenue for 
operating purposes and as other changes in assets without donor restrictions for acquisitions of property, 
plant and equipment.  

Advertising Costs 

Doylestown Health expenses advertising costs as incurred. For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, 
advertising costs of $1,356,552 and $687,612, respectively, are included in supplies and other expenses 
on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. 

Performance Indicator 

The consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets include the (deficiency in) excess of 
revenue and other income over expenses and other losses attributable to Village Improvement Association 
of Doylestown. Changes in net assets without donor restrictions, which are excluded from the excess of 
revenue and other income over expenses and other losses, consistent with industry practice, include net 
assets released from restrictions for property, plant and equipment and other changes in accrued retirement 
benefits.  

Liquidity and Availability of Resources 

As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, the modified days cash on hand, defined as financial assets available for 
general expenditure within one year over average daily expenses, as defined per Doylestown Health’s 
master financing agreement, was 135 and 201 days, respectively.  

Financial assets available for general expenditure within one year of the consolidated balance sheet date 
consist of the following: 

 2022 2021 
   
Cash and cash equivalents $ 35,666,981 $ 25,590,772 
Short-term investments 364,539 19,908,121 
Patient accounts receivable 45,286,685 43,408,577 
Assets limited as to use by Board of Trustees’ designation 54,108,890 86,491,887 
Investments 27,894,113 37,761,734 
   

 $ 163,321,208 $ 213,161,091 

 
Income Tax 

A tax position is recognized or derecognized by Doylestown Health based on a “more-likely-than-not” 
threshold. This applies to positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.  Doylestown Health does 
not believe its consolidated financial statements include any material uncertain tax positions. At June 30, 
2022, Doylestown Health’s tax years ended June 30, 2019 through 2022 for the federal tax jurisdiction 
remain open. 
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NOTE C - IMPACT OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC 

Like many healthcare providers across the United States, Doylestown Health has directed a sustained 
response to the COVID-19 crisis and continues to manage the disease.  The number of cases has continued 
to fluctuate with the most significant number of positive tests of inpatient admissions during fiscal year 2022.  
Since the inception of COVID-19, this disease has had multiple mutations and Doylestown Health continues 
to monitor the community it serves along with implementing recommendations from federal, state and local 
officials.  From the start, Doylestown Health’s highest priority has been, and continues to be, protecting the 
safety of its patients, visitors and the employed associates who serve them.  In order to provide a safe 
environment throughout the course of COVID-19, Doylestown Health, has incurred additional operating 
cost for labor, testing, protective equipment and many other operating cost associated with managing this 
disease. Federal and State stimulus dollars received have not substantially covered the additional operating 
costs incurred. Doylestown Health continues to monitor and advocate for additional legislative support for 
this crisis.   

Doylestown Health received grant payments, which are considered non-exchange transactions, from the 
federal government distributed under the Coronavirus Aid, Recovery and Economic Security (“CARES”) 
Act.  For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, payments of $3,401,592 and $19,068,146 are included 
in other revenue in the consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets.  These payments 
are subject to audit and compliance with federal regulations. Doylestown Health has reported to Health and 
Human Services as required to meet the conditions to retain these funds, and no amounts are reserved for 
repayment at June 30, 2022 or 2021 in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Future grant 
payments are uncertain at this time.  In addition to Federal stimulus dollars, Doylestown Health is currently 
in the process of pursuing additional sources of reimbursement through state and federal emergency 
agencies and insurance. 

The CARES Act also provided for an expansion of the Medicare Accelerated and Advance Payment 
Program for patient services. Under the program, Doylestown Health received $40,993,213 in April 2020, 
and recorded these payments in estimated settlements to third-party payors in the consolidated balance 
sheet at June 30, 2020. The recoupment period began in April 2021 and amounts billed to Medicare for 
services provided are offset against the advanced payments received until the advance is fully recouped 
by the Medicare program.  During the year ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, Medicare recouped $31,657,395 
and $4,894,785, respectively, which results in $4,441,033 in estimated settlements to third party payors 
included in the consolidated balance sheet at June 30, 2022.  Doylestown Health completed the repayment 
of this balance in August 2022. 

Additionally, the Internal Revenue Service allowed Doylestown Health to defer remittance of payroll taxes. 
The deferred tax liability of $3,120,612 and $5,988,459 at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, is included 
in accrued salaries and payroll taxes on the consolidated balance sheets. The June 30, 2022 balance is 
due by December 31, 2022. 

The course of the COVID-19 virus and its effect in the coming months are unknown.  Because of the 
uncertainty and evolving nature of the disease, the full impact on Doylestown Health’s financial position and 
operations including regulatory requirements, federal and state funding, reduced revenue stream, 
constraints on operations, and higher cost of resources, management cannot determine if there could be a 
material impact on its operations for the year ending June 20, 2023 
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NOTE D - PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE 

Doylestown Health has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments at amounts different 
from established charges. Doylestown Health’s inpatient acute care services and outpatient services for 
Medicare and Medicaid program beneficiaries are paid at prospectively determined rates per inpatient 
discharge or outpatient visit. These payments vary according to a patient classification system that is based 
on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors.  

Certain services for Medicare beneficiaries are paid based on a cost reimbursement methodology, subject 
to certain limitations. These services are reimbursed for cost reimbursable items at a tentative rate, with 
final settlement determined after submission of annual cost reports and audits thereof by the program’s 
fiscal intermediary. Provisions for estimated adjustments resulting from audit and final settlements have 
been recorded. Differences between the estimated adjustments and the amounts settled are recorded in 
the year of settlement. Fiscal intermediaries have not finalized the audits of cost reports for the years ended 
June 30, 2022, 2021, and 2020. 

The Department of Public Welfare (“DPW”) has approval from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid 
Services (“CMS”) for the Pennsylvania state plan amendments pursuant to Pennsylvania Act 49 of 2010 
that, among other things, established a new inpatient hospital fee-for-service payment system (using APR-
DRG), established enhanced hospital payments through the state’s Medical Assistance (“MA”) managed 
care program and secured additional matching Medicaid funds through the establishment of the Quality 
Care Assessment. The Hospital and Health Care Association of Pennsylvania issued hospital-specific 
impacts of the MA payment modernization for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. Doylestown Health 
recorded patient service revenue of $4,247,971 and $3,989,852, other revenue of $1,730,106 and 
$1,502,889 and other expense of $5,978,077 and $5,492,741, which resulted in no net operating impact, 
in its consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets for the years ended June 30, 2022 
or 2021.  

Doylestown Health has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial third-party payors 
and administrators. The basis for payments under these agreements includes prospectively determined 
rates per discharge, discounts from established charges, and prospectively determined daily rates. Certain 
agreements have retrospective audit clauses allowing the payor to review and adjust claims subsequent to 
initial payment.  

In the opinion of management, adequate provision has been made for any reimbursement changes that 
may result from third-party adjustments or cost report settlements. There were no adjustments recorded 
during the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.  

Revenues from the Medicare and Medicaid programs, collectively, accounted for approximately 32% of 
patient service revenues for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. Laws and regulations governing the 
Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to interpretation. As a result, there is at least a 
reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material amount in the near term. 
Management believes that it is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and is not aware of 
any pending or threatened investigations involving allegations of potential wrongdoing. While no such 
regulatory inquiries have been made, compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future 
government review and interpretations as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties, and 
exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs.  

Patient service revenue recognized for both the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 from third-party 
payors and self-pay were 91% and 9%, respectively. Deductibles and copayments under third-party 
payment programs within the third-party payor amounts above are patients’ responsibility. 
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NOTE E - INVESTMENTS AND ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE  

Investments and assets limited as to use consist of the following: 

 June 30, 

 2022 2021 
Short-term investments:   

Cash $ 364,539 $ 6,815,337 
Mutual funds - domestic fixed income - 13,092,784 

   
 $ 364,539 $ 19,908,121 

   
Internally designated by Board of Trustees:   

Cash $ 912,908 $ 4,702,943 
Mutual funds:   

Domestic fixed income 23,838,469 35,365,873 
Domestic equities 10,136,601 20,376,629 
International equities 10,409,796 19,341,838 

   
 45,297,774 79,787,283 
   

Alternative investments 8,811,116 6,704,604 
   

 $ 54,108,890 $ 86,491,887 

   
Internally designated for donor purposes:   

Cash $ 5,215,093 $ 4,071,345 
Mutual funds:   

Domestic fixed income 1,090,992 1,344,012 
Domestic equities 525,530 594,422 
International equities 510,845 576,422 

   
 7,342,460 6,586,201 
   

Alternative investments  174,310 142,637 
   
 $ 7,516,770 $ 6,718,838 

   
Externally designated under debt, resident agreements and 

statutory insurance requirements   
Cash $ 18,730,842 $ 28,174,434 
Less: current portion (11,460,233) (10,166,089) 

   
 $ 7,270,609 $ 18,008,345 
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 June 30, 

 2022 2021 
   
Investments:   

Cash $ 925,709 $ 733,625 
Mutual funds:   

Domestic fixed income 14,263,693 18,006,569 
Domestic equities 3,344,146 8,136,580 
International equities 5,538,288 7,976,492 

   
 24,071,836 34,853,266 

Alternative investments 3,822,277 2,908,468 
   
 $ 27,894,113 $ 37,761,734 

 
Investment income and investment return are comprised of the following:  

 Years Ending June 30, 

 2022 2021 
Other revenues   

Investment income $ 5,124 $ 73,384 

   
Nonoperating gains and losses   

Investment income $ 7,979,899 $ 3,864,686 
Realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments (15,311,487) 13,889,443 

   

Investment (loss) income, net $ (7,331,588) $ 17,754,129 

 
Changes in net assets with donor restrictions 

  

Investment income $ 243,691 $ 131,424 
Realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments (283,586) 341,125 

   
Investment (loss) income, net $ (39,895) $ 472,549 

 
CBR RRG is required by the South Carolina Department of Insurance to maintain a minimum capital and 
surplus of $1,125,000.  As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, CBBRG has complied with this requirement and has 
reported this amount as statutory insurance requirements on the consolidated balance sheets as of 
June 30, 2022 and 2021. 
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NOTE F - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 June 30, 

 2022 2021 
   
Land  $ 16,950,823 $ 16,950,823 
Land improvements 7,799,034 7,577,466 
Building and fixed equipment 439,036,519 412,826,700 
Movable equipment 191,812,327 184,842,562 
   
 655,598,703 622,197,553 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (374,583,456) (350,930,209) 
   
 281,015,247 271,267,344 
Construction-in-progress 8,838,883 10,325,083 
   

 $ 289,854,130 $ 281,592,427 

 
Depreciation and amortization expense was $25,634,097 and $24,607,299 for the years ended June 30, 
2022 and 2021, respectively. The Association wrote off $1,980,849 of fully depreciated assets in 2022. 

NOTE G - LONG-TERM DEBT 

 June 30, 

 2022 2021 
   
Doylestown Hospital Authority - Revenue Bonds:   

Series 2019A $ 58,740,000 $ 58,740,000 
Series 2019B 4,330,000 4,635,000 
Series 2016A 49,060,000 49,180,000 
Series 2016B - 1,820,000 
Series 2016C - 1,565,000 
Series 2013A 22,055,000 22,570,000 
Series 2013B 60,400,000 60,400,000 

   
 194,585,000 198,910,000 
   
Add:  Unamortized bond premiums all Revenue Bonds 9,959,349 10,641,482 

      Line of credit 14,175,000 - 
Less: Deferred financing costs (2,362,342) (2,377,558) 

      Current portion (3,465,000) (5,025,000) 
   

 $ 212,892,007 $ 202,148,924 
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2019 Series 

The $63,935,000 of 2019 Series A & B Bonds were issued to fund capital improvements for Doylestown 
Health, and to refund a portion of the Series 2013A Bonds. 

The Series 2019A Bonds consist of $58,740,000 of tax-exempt serial bonds with mandatory redemption 
amounts ranging from $70,000 (2037) and $11,210,000 (2049) with fixed interest rates of 4.0% and 5.0% 
on $23,250,000 and $35,490,000 of the principal, respectively. The 2019A Bonds are subject to optional 
redemption prior to maturity by the issuer, at the direction of Doylestown Health, as a whole or in part at 
any time on or after July 1, 2029, at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 2019A Bonds to 
be redeemed, plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. 

The Series 2019B Bonds consist of $5,195,000 of federally taxable serial bonds, which mature in varying 
annual amounts ranging from $5,000 (2023) to $4,325,000 (2024) through 2024, with a fixed interest rate 
of 3.9%. The 2019B Bonds are not subject to optional redemption prior to maturity. 

2016 Series 

The $75,495,000 2016 Series A, B and C Bonds were issued to refund all of the outstanding 2008A Bonds 
and a parking garage mortgage. Certain proceeds of the bonds went  towards capital improvements for the 
Hospital.  

The Series 2016A Bonds include $50,595,000 of tax-exempt serial bonds, which mature in varying annual 
amounts ranging from $125,000 to $6,240,000 through 2046, with fixed interest rates ranging from 3.00% 
to 5.00%. The 2016A Bonds are subject to optional redemption prior to maturity by the Authority, at the 
direction of Doylestown Health, as a whole or in part at any time on or after July 1, 2026, at a price equal 
to 100% of the principal amount of the 2016A Bonds to be redeemed, plus accrued interest to the date of 
redemption. 

The Series 2016B Bonds include $13,280,000 of tax-exempt serial bonds, which matured in 2022, with 
interest rate or 5.00%.  

The Series 2016C Bonds include $11,620,000 of taxable serial bonds, which matured in 2022, with interest 
rate of 3.49%.  

2013 Series 

The $26,595,000 Series 2013A Bonds were issued to refund all of the outstanding 1998A Bonds and a 
portion of the 2008B Bonds. These bonds mature in varying annual amounts ranging from $2,935,000 to 
$4,910,000 beginning on July 1, 2023 through July 1, 2029, with an interest rate of 5.00%. 

Simultaneously with the issuance of the 2013A Bonds, the remaining portion of the 2008B Bonds were 
refunded with $60,400,000 2013B Bonds as a direct placement with a national bank. The 2013B Bonds 
were refinanced effective June 30, 2022 to modify the variable interest rate benchmark from the expiring 
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) to a Daily Simple Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) 
and to modify the repayment schedule of the 2013B Bonds. The refinancing transaction was accounted for 
as a debt modification. These bonds mature in varying annual amounts ranging from $400,000 to 
$6,400,000 beginning in 2022 through 2037, and will bear interest at  a variable rate mode based on SOFR 
plus 1.00%. The interest rates on the 2013B Bonds were 4.84% (SOFR basis) and 4.78% (LIBOR basis) 
June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.   

The 2013A Bonds are subject to optional redemption prior to maturity by the Doylestown Hospital Authority 
(the “Authority”), at the direction of Doylestown Health, as a whole or in part at any time, at a price equal to 
100% of the principal amount of the 2013A Bonds to be redeemed, plus accrued interest to the date of 
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redemption. Doylestown Health has the option to refund the 2013 Series B Bonds at any time under the 
Direct Bank Purchase Agreement. The Direct Bank Purchase Agreement is through July 1, 2027, at which 
time the Direct Bank Purchase Agreement can either be extended or the bonds may be repurchased by 
Doylestown Health.  

Covenants 

The obligations for the 2013A, 2016A and 2019A Bonds are guaranteed by the Hospital and the Foundation 
(the “Obligated Group”). One particular maturity of the 2013A Bonds is insured by Assured Guaranty and 
collateralized by Hospital property. The Series 2013B bonds are secured on parity with the 2013A Bonds. 
Additionally, the 2013, 2016 and 2019 agreements contain certain restrictive covenants that require the 
Obligated Group to maintain certain thresholds for a debt service coverage ratio, a day’s cash on hand 
ratio, and a debt to capitalization ratio. The Obligated Group was in compliance with these requirements at 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 pursuant to the Guaranty Agreement. The Foundation’s obligations are secured 
by a lien on and a security interest in its gross revenues and on a parity basis by a lien on the Foundation’s 
revenues. 

Line of Credit 

The Obligated Group has a $15,000,000 line of credit agreement with a financial institution which was 
renewed on January 27, 2022 and expires on January 27, 2024. The line of credit has an interest rate equal 
to the sum of the highest of (1) the Prime Rate; (2) the sum of the Overnight Bank Funding Rate plus 
50 basis points; or (3) the sum of the Bloomberg Short-Term Bank Yield Index Rate plus 125 basis points, 
or 2.86% at June 30, 2022. Prior to the renewal, interest was calculated as the sum of either (1) the highest 
of the Prime Rate; (2) the sum of the Overnight Bank Funding Rate plus 50 basis points; or (3) the sum of 
the Daily Libor Rate plus 100 basis points, plus 175 basis points, or 5.0% at June 30, 2021. The line of 
credit is secured by a revenue pledge and a mortgage on the Hospital campus. The balance outstanding 
at June 30, 2022 was $14,175,000 and is presented in long-term debt on the consolidated balance sheets.  
The balance outstanding at June 30, 2021 was $3,000,000 and is presented as part of other current 
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.  The unused balance of the line of credit is utilized as collateral 
for letters of credit as needed. 

A summary of principal payments for all the long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter is as 
follows:  

  
2023 $ 3,465,000 
2024 5,205,000 
2025 5,615,000 
2026 6,835,000 
2027 7,170,000 
Thereafter 166,295,000 
  

 $ 194,585,000 
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NOTE H - DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The Obligated Group has interest rate swap agreements to hedge interest rate exposure on the aggregate 
notional amount of $60,400,000 as it relates to the 2013B Bonds. A notional amount of $15,400,000 of the 
swap agreement will terminate on July 1, 2026, and the remaining $45,000,000 portion of the swap 
agreement will terminate on July 1, 2037, unless terminated earlier in accordance with its terms. Both 
agreements were amended to convert from LIBOR to SOFR basis for interest rate calculation purposes 
with an effective date of July 1, 2022. The swap provides for payments by the Hospital of fixed rates in 
exchange for variable interest payments by the counterparty, which are intended to approximate the interest 
payments on the Series 2013B Bonds. Under the $15,400,000 and $45,000,000 swap agreements, the 
Hospital received floating rate payments based on 70% of the 30-day U.S. Dollar LIBOR and paid a fixed 
rate of 1.628% and 3.383% each month, respectively. As of July 1, 2022, the Hospital will receive floating 
rate payments based on 70% of the U.S. Dollar daily SOFR and pay a fixed rate of 1.628% and 3.383% 
each month, respectively. The Company adopted the provisions of Accounting Standards Update 2020-04, 
Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848) and applied the practical expedient to the July 1, 2022 interest rate 
swap modification which allows contract modifications due to reference rate reform to be a continuation of 
the previous contracts. 

The change in the fair value of the interest rate swap agreements was a decrease of $7,426,335 and 
$6,107,812 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the fair 
value of the interest rate swaps represented a liability of $5,588,204 and $13,014,539, respectively. 

Doylestown Health has established policies and procedures to limit the potential for counterparty credit risk, 
including establishing limits for credit exposure and continually assessing the creditworthiness of 
counterparties. As a matter of practice, Doylestown Health will enter into transactions only with 
counterparties whose obligations are rated “A-” or above as rated by Standard & Poor’s, or “A3” or above 
as rated by Moody’s. Doylestown Health’s exposure to credit risk, associated with its derivative financial 
instruments, is measured on an individual-counterparty basis, as well as by groups of counterparties that 
share similar attributes. As of the date the consolidated financial statements were issued, Doylestown 
Health was not exposed to any risk of loss.  

NOTE I - POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 

The Hospital has a frozen defined benefit noncontributory pension plan covering all full-time and certain 
part-time employees. Plan benefits are generally based on years of service and the employees’ 
compensation during the last five years of employment. The Hospital’s policy is to fund annually at least 
the minimum amount required by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. The mortality 
table used for projecting the benefit obligations was updated in the current year from the RP-2020 to the 
RP-2021 Generational Mortality Table. 
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The Hospital has a defined benefit Umbrella Executive Retirement Plan for executives. The Hospital uses 
a June 30 measurement date for the plans. The following table summarizes information about the retirement 
benefit plans.  

 Pension Benefits Other Retirement Benefits 
 2022 2021 2022 2021 
Accumulated benefit 

obligation $ 64,110,905 $ 84,764,060 N/A N/A 
     
Changes in benefit obligation     

Projected benefit 
obligation, beginning of 
year $ 84,764,060 $ 92,485,379 $ 41,525 $ 1,841,437 

Service cost - - 10,085 135,742 
Interest cost 2,374,555 2,460,131 1,163 28,134 
Actuarial (gain) loss  (14,169,804) 362,996 16,302 21,370 
Benefits paid (8,857,906) (10,544,446) - (1,985,158) 

     
Projected benefit 

obligation, end of 
year  $ 64,110,905 $ 84,764,060 $ 69,075 $ 41,525 

     
Changes in plan assets     

Fair value of plan assets, 
beginning of year $ 58,841,583 $ 54,710,520 $ - $ - 

Actual return on plan 
assets, net of expenses (6,247,525) 10,865,509 - - 

Employer contribution 1,506,000 3,810,000 - 1,985,158 
Benefits paid (8,857,906) (10,544,446) - (1,985,158) 

     
Fair value of plan 

assets, end of 
year $ 45,242,152 $ 58,841,583 $ - $ - 

     
Funded status  $ (18,868,753) $ (25,922,477) $ - $ (41,525) 

     
Amounts recognized in the 

consolidated balance 
sheets consist of:     

Accrued retirement 
benefits     

Current  $ - $ - $ (69,075) $ (41,525) 
Non-current (18,868,753) (25,922,477) - - 

     

 $ (18,868,753) $ (25,922,477) $ (69,075) $ (41,525) 
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 Pension Benefits Other Retirement Benefits 
 2022 2021 2022 2021 
Amounts recognized in 

accumulated net assets 
without donor restrictions 
consist of:     

Unrecognized net loss $ 34,339,669 $ 42,422,172 $ 39,115 $ 23,746 

     
Components of net periodic 

benefit cost recognized in 
employee fringe benefits:     

Service cost $ - $ - $ 10,085 $ 135,742 
     

Components of net periodic 
benefit cost recognized in 
other income and losses:     

Interest cost 2,374,555 2,460,131 1,163 28,134 
Expected return on 

assets (4,108,913) (4,318,795) - - 
Settlement charge 2,993,744 3,877,573 - 310,877 
Recognized net actuarial 

loss 1,275,393 1,560,928 933 9,040 
     
Other accrued retirement 

costs 2,534,779 3,579,837 2,096 348,051 
     

Net periodic benefit cost $ 2,534,779 $ 3,579,837 $ 12,181 $ 483,793 

     
Amounts recognized in other 

changes in net assets 
without donor restrictions 
consist of:     

Net (gain) loss  $ (3,813,366) $ (6,183,717) $ 16,302 $ 21,370 
Amortization (1,275,393) (1,560,928) (933) (9,040) 
Acceleration of loss due 

to settlement (2,993,744) (3,877,573) - (310,877) 
     
Other changes in accrued 

retirement benefits (8,082,503) (11,622,219) 15,369 (298,547) 
     

Total recognized in other 
changes in net assets 
without donor restrictions 
and net periodic benefit 
cost $ (5,547,724) $ (8,042,382) $ 27,550 $ 185,246 
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The estimated net loss that will be amortized from accumulated other changes in net assets without donor 
restrictions to net periodic benefit cost in the next fiscal year is $1,100,000 for the pension benefits and 
$1,695 for the other retirement benefits.  

 Pension Benefits Other Retirement Benefits 
 2022 2021 2022 2021 
Assumptions     

Weighted-average 
assumptions used to 
determine benefit 
obligations at June 30     
Discount rate 4.58% 2.80% 4.58% 2.80% 
Rate of compensation 

increase N/A N/A 4.00% 4.00% 
     

Weighted-average 
assumptions used to 
determine net periodic 
benefit cost at June 30     
Discount rate 2.80% 2.80% 2.80% 2.80% 
Rate of compensation 

increase N/A N/A 4.00% 4.00% 
Expected long-term 

return on plan assets 7.50% 7.75% N/A N/A 
 

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets assumption, the Hospital considered the 
historical returns and the future expectations for returns for each asset class, as well as the target allocation 
of the pension portfolio as shown below.  

The pension plan’s actual weighted-average asset allocations and target asset allocations, by asset 
category, are as follows:  

 Target Asset June 30, 
Asset Category Allocation 2022 2021 
    
Equity securities 55% 46% 52% 
Fixed income securities 35 31 34 
Alternative investments 10 23 14 
    

 100% 100% 100% 

 
The policy, as established by the Hospital with input from the investment manager, is to provide for growth 
of capital with a moderate level of volatility by investing assets per the target allocations stated above. The 
investment policy is reviewed on a regular basis under the advisement of the investment manager. An 
Investment Advisory Group of the Board of Trustees reviewed the asset allocation and recommendations 
of the investment manager. 
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Fair Values of Plan Assets 

The following table presents the Hospital’s categorization of the assets of the pension plan within the fair 
value hierarchy as of June 30: 

2022 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
     
Cash $ 44,190 $ 44,190 $ - $ - 
Equity securities (a) 20,877,933 20,877,933 - - 
Fixed income securities (b) 13,761,884 13,761,884 - - 
     
 34,684,007 $ 34,684,007 $ - $ - 

     
Alternative investments at 

NAV(c) 10,558,145    
     

 $ 45,242,152    
 

2021 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
     
Cash $ 49,505 $ 49,505 $ - $ - 
Equity securities (a) 30,820,530 30,820,530 - - 
Fixed income securities (b) 19,933,569 19,933,569 - - 
     
 50,803,604 $ 50,803,604 $ - $ - 

     
Alternative investments at 

NAV(c) 8,037,979    
     
 $ 58,841,583    

 
(a) Comprised of various equity securities, which include U.S. large, mid-cap and small-cap equities and 

index funds. 
(b) Comprised of high yield debt and investment grade bonds. 
(c) Alternative investments at net asset value (“NAV”) are comprised of an opportunity investment, made 

up of various strategy funds, including relative value investments, discretionary global macro funds, 
managed futures, structured products and direct lending. 

The Hospital measures fair value of investments using the market approach for all investments except for 
alternative investments. Fair value of the Hospital’s opportunity investment is determined based upon the 
NAV of the fund per share provided by the fund manager. The fair value of the underlying securities and 
other financial information of the opportunity investment may involve estimates that require a degree of 
judgment. The NAV reported by the fund is used to estimate the Hospital’s interest therein. 

The alternative investment is in the Core Property Collective Investment Trust (“CIT”) and is measured 
using the NAV of the fund.  The CIT NAV is used to estimate fair value.  The CIT does not have a lock-up 
period. It has a quarterly tender process with a 45-90-day notification requirement which varies by 
underlying fund. The Corporation has no unfunded commitments.  
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Cash Flows  

Contributions 

The Hospital expects to contribute approximately $1,011,000 in pension benefits and no amount related to 
other retirement benefits, respectively, for contributions for the year ending June 30, 2023.  

Estimated Future Benefit Payments 

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be 
paid.  

  Other 
 Pension Retirement 
 Benefits Benefits 
   
2023 $ 4,900,000 $ - 
2024 5,000,000 - 
2025 5,200,000 - 
2026 5,200,000 - 
2027 5,200,000 - 
2028-2032 24,500,000 - 

 
Defined Contribution Plan 

Doylestown Health has a defined contribution retirement plan for all employees, covering substantially all 
employees of Doylestown Health. The plan is designed to provide eligible employees with long-term savings 
and investment opportunities. Participation in this plan is voluntary. Employees are eligible to participate 
upon hire, and employees meeting eligibility requirements are eligible for employer contributions effective 
the first of the month following the date of hire or the first of the month following attainment of age 21, if 
later. For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, Doylestown Health made matching contributions and 
expensed $5,352,468 and $4,818,477, respectively.  

NOTE J - INSURANCE COVERAGE AND SELF-INSURED RESERVES 

Medical Professional and General Liability Insurance 

Effective July 1, 2021, Doylestown Health’s risk retention company, CBR RRG, insures the primary layer 
on a claims-made-basis for professional liability, physician professional liability, Non-MCARE eligible 
liability and occurrence-basis general liability.  This policy provides professional liability coverage limits of 
$500,000 per claim and $2,500,000 aggregate for Doylestown Hospital, $500,000 per claim and $1,500,000 
aggregate for Pine Run, physician professional liability coverage limits of $500,000 per claim and 
$1,500,000 aggregate, Non-MCARE eligible (shared limit) coverage limits of $1,000,000 per claim and 
$3,000,000 aggregate, and general liability coverage of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $3,000,000 
aggregate.   

As of June 30, 2022, CBR RRG has current liabilities of approximately $3,153,000 at June 30, 2022.  CBR 
RRG is required to maintain minimum capital and surplus of $1,125,000.  As of June 30, 2022, Doylestown 
Health complied with this requirement. 

Prior to July 1, 2021, Doylestown Health insured its primary layer of professional liability, physician 
professional liability, Non-MCARE eligible and general liabilities through an insurance company under a 
commercial insurance policy. The professional and physicians liabilities were written on a claims-made 
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basis and the general liability was written on an occurrence basis. This policy provided professional liability 
limits of $500,000 per claim and $2,500,000 annual aggregate for the Hospital and $500,000 per claim and 
$1,500,000 for Pine Run and $500,000 per claim, physician professional liability coverage of $500,000 per 
claim and $1,500,000 aggregate, Non-MCARE eligible (shared limit) coverage limits of $1,000,000 per 
claim and $3,000,000 aggregate. The policy also provided general liability limits of $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and $3,000,000 aggregate. The policy was subject to an amount of $100,000 and $800,000 per 
aggregate for professional liability claims reported prior to July 1, 2014 and general liability claims that 
occurred before July 1, 2014. Beginning July 1, 2014, the deductible amount is $150,000 and $1,300,000 
per annual aggregate for professional liability claims reported after June 30, 2014 and general liability 
claims that occurred after June 30, 2014.  

In addition to the primary layer, Doylestown Hospital maintains excess coverage from third-party insurers 
for amounts above the limits insured by CBR RRG and the commercial policy for years ended June 20, 
2022 and 2021, respectively. 

Doylestown Hospital has current liabilities of approximately $1,544,000 and $2,340,000 at June 30, 2022 
and 2021, respectively, and long-term liabilities of approximately $$11,558,000 and $11,198,000 at 
June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively (discounted at 3.5% for  June 30, 2022 and 2% for  June 30, 2021), 
in the consolidated balance sheets, representing estimates of known and incurred but not reported claims. 
Additionally, Doylestown Health has an insurance coverage receivable, estimated at approximately 
$8,852,000 and $8,769,000 at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, presented in other assets in the 
consolidated balance sheets. 

The Medical Care Availability and Reduction of Error (“MCARE”) Act was enacted by the legislature of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (“Commonwealth”) in 2002. The MCARE Fund is funded on a “pay as you 
go basis” and assesses health care providers, based on a percentage of the rates established by the Joint 
Underwriting Association (also a Commonwealth agency) for basic coverage. No provision has been made 
for any future MCARE Fund assessments in the accompanying consolidated financial statements as the 
Hospital’s portion of the MCARE Fund unfunded liability cannot be reasonably estimated.  

Workers’ Compensation Insurance 

Doylestown Health has a self-insured workers’ compensation program subject to a self-insured retention of 
$500,000 per claim for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. Claims exceeding the self-insured 
retention are covered under an excess insurance policy, the maximum limit of indemnity is statutory and 
the employers’ liability maximum limit of indemnity per occurrence and aggregate is $1,000,000 at both 
June 30, 2022 and 2021.  

The liability for workers’ compensation claims (discounted at 3.5% and 2.0% at June 30, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively) of approximately $1,631,000 and $1,788,000 at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, is 
included in the current portion of insurance claims liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. Doylestown 
Health maintains continuous surety bond coverage of $1,900,000 at both June 30, 2022 and 2021. 

Employee Medical Benefits 

Doylestown Health is self-insured for employee medical benefits. The liabilities for medical claims total 
approximately $1,082,000 and $1,275,000 at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Such amounts are 
included in the current portion of insurance claims liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets, and 
represent the estimated costs of medical services provided by other hospitals, physicians and other medical 
care providers, which will be paid out in future periods. The stop-loss insurance limit is $500,000 at both 
June 30, 2022 and 2021, for all claims in any one year by any one individual. 
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NOTE K - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

U.S. GAAP establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to 
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets 
for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to measurements involving 
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as 
follows: 

Level 1 - Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that 
Doylestown Health has the ability to access at the measurement date. 

Level 2 - Inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3 - Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

The following tables present assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at 
June 30:  

 2022 
 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
Assets     

Cash and cash equivalents $ 61,816,072 $ 61,816,072 $ - $ - 
Domestic fixed income 39,193,154 39,193,154 - - 
Domestic equities 14,006,277 14,006,277 - - 
International equities 16,458,929 16,458,929 - - 
Beneficial interests in 

perpetual trusts 11,061,351 - - 11,061,351 
     
 142,535,783 $ 131,474,432 $ - $ 11,061,351 

     
Alternative investments 12,807,703    

     
Total assets $ 155,343,486    

     
Liabilities     

Interest rate swaps $ 5,588,204 $ - $ 5,588,204 $ - 
     

Total liabilities $ 5,588,204 $ - $ 5,588,204 $ - 
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 2021 
 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
Assets     

Cash and cash equivalents $ 70,088,456 $ 70,088,456 $ - $ - 
Domestic fixed income 67,809,238 67,809,238 - - 
Domestic equities 29,107,631 29,107,631 - - 
International equities 27,894,752 27,894,752 - - 
Beneficial interests in 

perpetual trusts 13,824,615 - - 13,824,615 
     

 208,724,692 $ 194,900,077 $ - $ 13,824,615 

     
Alternative investments 9,745,708    

     
Total assets $ 218,470,400    

     
Liabilities     

Interest rate swaps $ 13,014,539 $ - $ 13,014,539 $ - 
     

Total liabilities $ 13,014,539 $ - $ 13,014,539 $ - 

 
The estimated fair value for its Level 1 securities is determined using the market approach. The estimated 
fair value for its Level 2 securities and interest rate swap using transactions and inputs that are derived 
principally from or corroborated by other observable market data. Beneficial interests in perpetual trusts are 
considered to be Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy and valued using the market approach of the underlying 
holdings.  

The alternative investment is in the Core Property Fund LP (“LP”) and is measured using the NAV of the 
fund. The LP NAV is used to estimate fair value. The LP does not have a lock-up period. It has a quarterly 
tender process with a 65-day notification requirement. Doylestown Health has no unfunded commitments. 

The following table summarizes the changes in Level 3 beneficial interest in perpetual trusts:  

  
End of the year, June 30, 2020 $ 11,451,134 

Change in fair value 2,373,481 
  
End of the year, June 30, 2021 13,824,615 

Change in fair value (2,763,264) 
  
End of the year, June 30, 2022 $ 11,061,351 
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NOTE L - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 

Doylestown Health has recorded net assets with donor restrictions, which are available for the following 
purposes:  

 June 30, 

 2022 2021 
   
Various health care services $ 16,059,995 $ 10,176,226 
Investment in property, plant and equipment 5,180,830 4,941,537 
Investments to be held in perpetuity, the income from which is  

expendable to support health care services and charity care 11,061,351 13,824,615 
   

 $ 32,302,176 $ 28,942,378 

 
NOTE M - FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

Doylestown Health provides general health care services to residents within their geographic location 
including acute care, home care, pediatric care, outpatient surgery, long-term care, and hospice care, as 
well as operates an independent living facility. Expenses related to providing these services are as follows:  

 Program Services   

Year Ended June 30, 2022 Health Care Pine Run 
General and 

Administrative  Total  
     
Salaries and wages $ 181,761,610 $ 4,611,657 $ 43,782,031 $ 230,155,298 
Employee benefits 34,924,038 849,330 (2,107,989) 33,665,379 
Professional fees 4,529,764 - 433,202 4,962,966 
Supplies and other expenses 97,423,798 5,502,608 58,880,994 161,807,400 
Depreciation and amortization 10,707,685 5,745,440 9,337,035 25,790,160 
Interest 476,037 515,394 8,930,177 9,921,608 
     

 $ 329,822,932 $ 17,224,429 $ 119,255,450 $ 466,302,811 

 
 Program Services   

Year Ended June 30, 2021 Health Care Pine Run 
General and 

Administrative  Total  
     
Salaries and wages $ 162,904,630 $ 4,178,068 $ 36,963,283 $ 204,045,981 
Employee benefits 23,546,370 1,044,770 5,226,241 29,817,381 
Professional fees 3,821,118 - 365,219 4,186,337 
Supplies and other expenses 89,015,403 4,420,507 52,716,283 146,152,193 
Depreciation and amortization 12,463,359 5,669,261 6,712,131 24,844,751 
Interest 928,701 522,097 8,031,187 9,481,985 
     

 $ 292,679,581 $ 15,834,703 $ 110,014,344 $ 418,528,628 
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NOTE N - INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 

Doylestown Health has the following amounts recorded in other assets in the consolidated balance sheets 
related to investments in joint ventures, accounted for using the equity method (unless noted):  

 June 30, 

 2022 2021 
   
Doylestown PET Associates, LLC $ 750,938 $ 119,796 
Doylestown Healthcare Partnership  105,151 432,354 
Colmar Imaging 65,722 200,943 
   

 $ 921,811 $ 753,093 

 
The Hospital owns 49% of the Doylestown PET Associates, LLC, a for-profit business corporation.  

The Doylestown Healthcare Partnership, LLC (“DHP”) was established to own and operate a clinically and 
financially integrated health network. DHP consists of Doylestown Hospital and professionals of all 
disciplines on the Doylestown Hospital Medical Staff who have an equity interest in DHP. The Hospital 
owns 50% of DHP.  

The Hospital and a partner established the Doylestown Ambulatory Surgery Center (“ASC”) with the 
Hospital initially owning 51% of the joint venture. In February 2021, the Hospital sold 10% of its ownership 
to another party resulting in a 41% ownership at June 30, 2022 and 2021. ASC has recognized losses since 
its inception and as a result Doylestown Health recorded a net loss of $1,640,000 and  $1,275,000 during 
the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

The Foundation owns 11% of Colmar Imaging, a for-profit business corporation. The Foundation accounts 
for its investment in Colmar Imaging using the cost method of accounting.  

Other revenue includes net equity losses of $1,389,664 and  $757,933 for the years ended June 30, 2022 
and 2021, respectively. Doylestown Health received distributions of $81,618 and $1,706,417 for the years 
ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Doylestown Health contributed $1,640,000 to these joint 
ventures during the year ended June 30, 2022.  No contributions to joint ventures were made during the 
year ended June 30, 2021. 
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NOTE O - LEASES 

The components of lease cost included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and 
changes in net assets are as follows: 

Component of Lease Balances 

Classification in Consolidated 
Statement of Operations and 

Changes in Net Assets 
Year Ended 

June 30, 2022 
Year Ended 

June 30, 2021 
    
Operating lease expense Supplies and other expenses $ 9,115,960 $ 9,867,352 
    
Finance lease expense:    

Amortization of leased assets Depreciation and amortization 405,773 405,773 
Interest on lease liabilities Interest 61,756 78,236 

    
Total finance lease 

expense  467,529 484,009 
    
Variable and short-term lease 

expense Other 162,072 123,569 
    

Total lease expense  $ 9,745,561 $ 10,474,960 

 
The weighted-average lease terms and discount rates for operating and finance leases are as follows: 

 June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 
   
Weighted-average remaining lease term (years)   

Operating leases 11.75 11.93 
Finance leases 2.89 3.89 

   
Weighted-average remaining discount rate   

Operating leases 4.02% 3.93% 
Finance leases 4.00% 4.00% 

 

 
Year Ended 

June 30, 2022 
Year Ended 

June 30, 2021 
   
Cash flow related to leases are as follows:   
   
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease 

liabilities:   
Operating cash outflows related to operating leases $ 8,553,865 $ 9,108,778 
Operating cash outflows related to finance leases 61,756 112,073 
Financing cash outflows related to finance leases 466,749 416,432 

   
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations:   

Operating leases 2,715,623 2,183,207 
Finance leases - - 

 



Village Improvement Association of Doylestown and Controlled Entities 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

June 30, 2022 and 2021 

37 

The future minimum lease payments required under non-cancellable operating and finance leases at 
June 30, 2022 are as follows: 

 
Operating 

Leases 
Finance 
Leases Total 

    
2023 $ 7,361,618 $ 528,505 $ 7,890,123 
2024 6,457,385 528,505 6,985,890 
2025 5,558,274 429,287 5,987,561 
2026 5,224,571 - 5,224,571 
2027 4,471,951 - 4,471,951 
Thereafter 31,713,910 - 31,713,910 
    
Total lease payments 60,787,709 1,486,297 62,274,006 
    
Less: Imputed interest (12,405,663) (25,070) (12,430,733) 
    
 $ 48,382,046 $ 1,461,227 $ 49,843,273 

 

NOTE P - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Litigation 

Doylestown Health is a defendant in several matters of litigation all in the ordinary course of conducting 
business. In the opinion of management, the ultimate outcome of these matters will not have a material 
effect on Doylestown Health’s consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.  

NOTE Q - CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK 

Doylestown Health grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents and are 
insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payors 
was as follows:  

 June 30, 

 2022 2021 
   
Blue Cross 11% 11% 
Medicare 30 34 
Self-pay 12 11 
Keystone Health Plan 13 13 
Commercial/HMO/PPO 18 17 
Aetna 9 9 
Medical Assistance 3 2 
Other 4 3 
   

 100% 100% 
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NOTE R - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Management has evaluated subsequent events for the year ended June 30, 2022, the date of the 
consolidated financial statements, through September 23, 2022, which is the date the consolidated financial 
statements were available to be issued, and is not aware of any subsequent events which would require 
recognition or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.
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Doylestown Doylestown 
Hospital & Health Obligated The

Subsidiaries Foundation Eliminations Group Association VIA Affiliates Eliminations Total
ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 23,378,405$      10,906,845$      -$                       34,285,250$      862,135$           519,596$           -$                       35,666,981$      
Short-term investments 364,539             -                         -                         364,539             -                         -                         -                         364,539             
Assets limited as to use 11,460,233        -                         -                         11,460,233        -                         -                         -                         11,460,233        
Patient accounts receivable 40,927,486        -                         -                         40,927,486        -                         4,359,199          -                         45,286,685        
Due from affiliated entities 24,759,474        -                         -                         24,759,474        -                         2,074,720          (26,834,194)       -                         
Supplies 11,092,599        -                         -                         11,092,599        -                         -                         -                         11,092,599        
Other current assets 10,469,781        3,821,539          -                         14,291,320        13,044               1,086,553          -                         15,390,917        

Total current assets 122,452,517      14,728,384        -                         137,180,901      875,179             8,040,068          (26,834,194)       119,261,954      

Assets limited as to use
Internally designated:

By Board of Trustees 53,254,543        854,347             -                         54,108,890        -                         -                         -                         54,108,890        
By Board of Trustees - for donor purposes -                         7,516,770          -                         7,516,770          -                         -                         -                         7,516,770          

53,254,543        8,371,117          -                         61,625,660        -                         -                         -                         61,625,660        
Externally designated:
   Debt agreements 6,011,009          -                         -                         6,011,009          -                         -                         -                         6,011,009          
   Resident agreements 134,600             -                         -                         134,600             -                         -                         -                         134,600             
   Statutory insurance requirements 1,125,000          -                         -                         1,125,000          -                         -                         -                         1,125,000          

7,270,609          -                         -                         7,270,609          -                         -                         -                         7,270,609          

Total assets limited as to use,
net of current portion 60,525,152        8,371,117          -                         68,896,269        -                         -                         -                         68,896,269        

Investments -                         26,970,506        -                         26,970,506        923,607             -                         -                         27,894,113        
Investment in net assets of Doylestown 

Health Foundation 32,008,501        -                         (32,008,501)       -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         
Property, plant and equipment, net 288,000,076      9,524                 -                         288,009,600      238,727             1,605,803          -                         289,854,130      
Right-of-use assets, operating leases 38,160,813        -                         -                         38,160,813        -                         8,920,048          -                         47,080,861        
Other assets 10,442,147        10,982,901        -                         21,425,048        -                         38,688               -                         21,463,736        
Due from affiliated entities -                         25,595,130        -                         25,595,130        -                         -                         (25,595,130)       -                         
Beneficial interests in perpetual trusts -                         11,061,351        -                         11,061,351        -                         -                         -                         11,061,351        

Total assets 551,589,206$    97,718,913$      (32,008,501)$     617,299,618$    2,037,513$        18,604,607$      (52,429,324)$     585,512,414$    

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities
Current portion of long term debt 3,465,000$        -$                       -$                       3,465,000$        -$                       -$                       -$                       3,465,000$        
Current portion of finance lease obligations 483,832             -                         -                         483,832             -                         -                         -                         483,832             
Current portion of operating lease obligations 3,863,312          -                         -                         3,863,312          -                         1,953,269          -                         5,816,581          
Current portion of insurance claims liabilities 4,257,474          -                         -                         4,257,474          -                         -                         -                         4,257,474          
Current portion of accrued retirement benefits 859,893             -                         -                         859,893             -                         -                         -                         859,893             
Accounts payable 45,641,277        53,479               -                         45,694,756        -                         584,719             -                         46,279,475        
Accrued salaries and payroll taxes 13,502,598        -                         -                         13,502,598        -                         4,988,388          -                         18,490,986        
Accrued vacation 10,646,146        -                         -                         10,646,146        -                         963,424             -                         11,609,570        
Other liabilities 6,034,979          -                         -                         6,034,979          55,353               -                         -                         6,090,332          
Estimated settlements to third-party payors, net 12,441,033        -                         -                         12,441,033        -                         -                         -                         12,441,033        
Due to affiliated entities 2,119,596          2,907,082          -                         5,026,678          -                         -                         (5,026,678)         -                         

Total current liabilities 103,315,140      2,960,561          -                         106,275,701      55,353               8,489,800          (5,026,678)         109,794,176      

Long-term debt, net of current portion 212,892,007      -                         -                         212,892,007      -                         -                         -                         212,892,007      
Finance lease obligations, net of current portion 977,395             -                         -                         977,395             -                         -                         -                         977,395             
Operating lease obligations, net of current portion 35,405,086        -                         -                         35,405,086        -                         7,160,379          -                         42,565,465        
Interest rate swaps 5,588,204          -                         -                         5,588,204          -                         -                         -                         5,588,204          
Insurance claims liabilities, net of current portion 11,558,128        -                         -                         11,558,128        -                         -                         -                         11,558,128        
Accrued retirement benefits, net of current portion 18,868,753        -                         -                         18,868,753        -                         -                         -                         18,868,753        
Refundable entry fees 7,788,475          -                         -                         7,788,475          -                         -                         -                         7,788,475          
Deferred entry fees 21,336,834        -                         -                         21,336,834        -                         -                         -                         21,336,834        
Due to affiliated entities -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         47,402,646        (47,402,646)       -                         
Other liabilities -                         219,377             -                         219,377             -                         -                         -                         219,377             

Total liabilities 417,730,022      3,179,938          -                         420,909,960      55,353               63,052,825        (52,429,324)       431,588,814      

Net assets
Without donor restrictions:
   Village Improvement Association of Doylestown 102,714,512      62,530,474        -                         165,244,986      1,710,827          (44,448,218)       -                         122,507,595      
   Noncontrolling interests (886,171)            -                         -                         (886,171)            -                         -                         -                         (886,171)            

101,828,341      62,530,474        -                         164,358,815      1,710,827          (44,448,218)       -                         121,621,424      

With donor restrictions 32,030,843        32,008,501        (32,008,501)       32,030,843        271,333             -                         -                         32,302,176        

TOTAL NET ASSETS (DEFICIENCY) 133,859,184      94,538,975        (32,008,501)       196,389,658      1,982,160          (44,448,218)       -                         153,923,600      

Total liabilities and net assets 551,589,206$    97,718,913$      (32,008,501)$     617,299,618$    2,037,513$        18,604,607$      (52,429,324)$     585,512,414$    
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Covered

Doylestown Pine Bridge Doylestown
Hospital Run Doylestown Risk Retention Hospital &
Division Division Eliminations Hospital Group DR Cardiology Eliminations Subsidiaries

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 17,081,912$      3,088,891$        -$                       20,170,803$      3,207,602$        -$                       -$                       23,378,405$      
Short-term investments 364,539             -                         -                         364,539             -                         -                         -                         364,539             
Assets limited as to use 11,460,233        -                         -                         11,460,233        -                         -                         -                         11,460,233        
Patient accounts receivable 38,350,227        2,429,470          -                         40,779,697        -                         147,789             -                         40,927,486        
Due from affiliated entities 45,072,055        -                         (20,312,581)       24,759,474        -                         -                         -                         24,759,474        
Supplies 11,017,268        75,331               -                         11,092,599        -                         -                         -                         11,092,599        
Other current assets 8,281,871          2,091,786          -                         10,373,657        96,124               -                         -                         10,469,781        

Total current assets 131,628,105      7,685,478          (20,312,581)       119,001,002      3,303,726          147,789             -                         122,452,517      

Assets limited as to use
Internally designated by Board of Trustees 53,254,543        -                         -                         53,254,543        -                         -                         -                         53,254,543        

Externally designated:
   Debt agreements 6,011,009          -                         -                         6,011,009          -                         -                         -                         6,011,009          
   Resident agreements -                         134,600             -                         134,600             -                         -                         -                         134,600             
   Statutory insurance requirements -                         -                         -                         -                         1,125,000          -                         -                         1,125,000          

Total externally designated 6,011,009          134,600             -                         6,145,609          1,125,000          -                         -                         7,270,609          

Total assets limited as to use,
net of current portion 59,265,552        134,600             -                         59,400,152        1,125,000          -                         -                         60,525,152        

Investment in net assets of Doylestown 
Health Foundation 32,008,501        -                         -                         32,008,501        -                         -                         -                         32,008,501        

Property, plant and equipment, net 204,281,666      83,518,741        -                         287,800,407      -                         199,669             -                         288,000,076      
Right-of-use assets, operating leases 36,430,183        339,687             -                         36,769,870        -                         1,390,943          -                         38,160,813        
Other assets 11,567,147        -                         -                         11,567,147        -                         -                         (1,125,000)         10,442,147        
Due from affiliated entities 34,772,272        -                         (34,772,272)       -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Total assets 509,953,426$    91,678,506$      (55,084,853)$     546,547,079$    4,428,726$        1,738,401$        (1,125,000)$       551,589,206$    

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities
Current portion of long term debt 3,465,000$        -$                       -$                       3,465,000$        -$                       -$                       -$                       3,465,000$        
Current portion of finance lease obligations 483,832             -                         -                         483,832             -                         -                         -                         483,832             
Current portion of operating lease obligations 3,659,678          103,680             -                         3,763,358          -                         99,954               -                         3,863,312          
Current portion of insurance claims liabilities 3,624,121          633,353             -                         4,257,474          -                         -                         -                         4,257,474          
Current portion of accrued retirement benefits 859,893             -                         -                         859,893             -                         -                         -                         859,893             
Accounts payable 42,988,088        2,653,189          -                         45,641,277        -                         -                         -                         45,641,277        
Accrued salaries and payroll taxes 12,277,994        1,224,604          -                         13,502,598        -                         -                         -                         13,502,598        
Accrued vacation 9,806,286          839,860             -                         10,646,146        -                         -                         -                         10,646,146        
Other liabilities 2,541,452          340,391             -                         2,881,843          3,153,136          -                         -                         6,034,979          
Estimated settlements to third-party payors, net 12,441,033        -                         -                         12,441,033        -                         -                         -                         12,441,033        
Due to affiliated entities -                         20,312,581        (20,312,581)       -                         -                         2,119,596          -                         2,119,596          

Total current liabilities 92,147,377        26,107,658        (20,312,581)       97,942,454        3,153,136          2,219,550          -                         103,315,140      

Long-term debt, net of current portion 212,892,007      -                         -                         212,892,007      -                         -                         -                         212,892,007      
Finance lease obligations, net of current portion 977,395             -                         -                         977,395             -                         -                         -                         977,395             
Operating lease obligations, net of current portion 33,877,833        236,061             -                         34,113,894        -                         1,291,192          -                         35,405,086        
Interest rate swaps 5,588,204          -                         -                         5,588,204          -                         -                         -                         5,588,204          
Insurance claims liabilities, net of current portion 11,558,128        -                         -                         11,558,128        -                         -                         -                         11,558,128        
Accrued retirement benefits, net of current portion 18,868,753        -                         -                         18,868,753        -                         -                         -                         18,868,753        
Refundable entry fees -                         7,788,475          -                         7,788,475          -                         -                         -                         7,788,475          
Deferred entry fees -                         21,336,834        -                         21,336,834        -                         -                         -                         21,336,834        
Due to affiliated entities -                         34,772,272        (34,772,272)       -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Total liabilities 375,909,697      90,241,300        (55,084,853)       411,066,144      3,153,136          3,510,742          -                         417,730,022      

Net assets
Without donor restrictions:
   Doylestown Hospital 102,035,228      1,414,864          -                         103,450,092      1,275,590          (886,170)            (1,125,000)         102,714,512      
   Noncontrolling interests -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         (886,171)            -                         (886,171)            

102,035,228      1,414,864          -                         103,450,092      1,275,590          (1,772,341)         (1,125,000)         101,828,341      

With donor restrictions 32,008,501        22,342               -                         32,030,843        -                         -                         -                         32,030,843        

TOTAL NET ASSETS (DEFICIENCY) 134,043,729      1,437,206          -                         135,480,935      1,275,590          (1,772,341)         (1,125,000)         133,859,184      

Total liabilities and net assets 509,953,426$    91,678,506$      (55,084,853)$     546,547,079$    4,428,726$        1,738,401$        (1,125,000)$       551,589,206$    
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Doylestown Doylestown
Hospital & Health Obligated The

Subsidiaries Foundation Eliminations Group Association VIA Affiliates Eliminations Total
ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 18,497,231$      3,203,380$        -$                       21,700,611$      1,148,686$        2,741,475$        -$                       25,590,772$      
Short-term investments 19,908,121        -                         -                         19,908,121        -                         -                         -                         19,908,121        
Assets limited as to use 10,166,089        -                         -                         10,166,089        -                         -                         -                         10,166,089        
Patient accounts receivable 39,466,611        -                         -                         39,466,611        -                         3,941,966          -                         43,408,577        
Due from affiliated entities 20,361,549        -                         -                         20,361,549        -                         -                         (20,248,203)       113,346             
Supplies 9,793,799          -                         -                         9,793,799          -                         -                         -                         9,793,799          
Other current assets 10,825,453        1,528,710          -                         12,354,163        12,600               831,422             -                         13,198,185        

Total current assets 129,018,853      4,732,090          -                         133,750,943      1,161,286          7,514,863          (20,248,203)       122,178,889      

Assets limited as to use
Internally designated:

By Board of Trustees 81,997,607        4,494,280          -                         86,491,887        -                         -                         -                         86,491,887        
By Board of Trustees - for donor purposes -                         6,718,838          -                         6,718,838          -                         -                         -                         6,718,838          

81,997,607        11,213,118        -                         93,210,725        -                         -                         -                         93,210,725        
Externally designated:
   Debt agreements 16,609,545        -                         -                         16,609,545        -                         -                         -                         16,609,545        
   Resident agreements 273,800             -                         -                         273,800             -                         -                         -                         273,800             
   Statutory insurance requirements 1,125,000          -                         -                         1,125,000          -                         -                         -                         1,125,000          

18,008,345        -                         -                         18,008,345        -                         -                         -                         18,008,345        

Total assets limited as to use,
net of current portion 100,005,952      11,213,118        -                         111,219,070      -                         -                         -                         111,219,070      

Investments -                         37,028,109        -                         37,028,109        733,625             -                         -                         37,761,734        
Investment in net assets of Doylestown -                         

Health Foundation 28,622,328        -                         (28,622,328)       -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         
Property, plant and equipment, net 279,634,754      13,464               -                         279,648,218      235,695             1,708,514          -                         281,592,427      
Right-of-use assets, operating leases 42,216,102        -                         -                         42,216,102        -                         11,205,434        -                         53,421,536        
Other assets 9,712,238          8,000,732          -                         17,712,970        3,650                 38,688               -                         17,755,308        
Due from affiliated entities -                         25,594,559        -                         25,594,559        -                         -                         (25,594,559)       -                         
Beneficial interests in perpetual trusts -                         13,824,615        -                         13,824,615        -                         -                         -                         13,824,615        

Total assets 589,210,227$    100,406,687$    (28,622,328)$     660,994,586$    2,134,256$        20,467,499$      (45,842,762)$     637,753,579$    

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities
Current portion of long term debt 5,025,000$        -$                       -$                       5,025,000$        -$                       -$                       -$                       5,025,000$        
Current portion of finance lease obligations 466,749             -                         -                         466,749             -                         -                         -                         466,749             
Current portion of operating lease obligations 4,205,177          -                         -                         4,205,177          -                         2,254,702          -                         6,459,879          
Current portion of insurance claims liabilities 5,403,284          -                         -                         5,403,284          -                         -                         -                         5,403,284          
Current portion of accrued retirement benefits 626,657             -                         -                         626,657             -                         -                         -                         626,657             
Accounts payable 40,899,557        82,883               -                         40,982,440        3,437                 1,187,878          -                         42,173,755        
Accrued salaries and payroll taxes 12,691,595        -                         -                         12,691,595        -                         4,577,141          -                         17,268,736        
Accrued vacation 10,171,657        -                         -                         10,171,657        -                         844,128             -                         11,015,785        
Other liabilities 5,521,171          -                         -                         5,521,171          14,757               731,167             -                         6,267,095          
Estimated settlements to third-party payors, net 33,877,966        -                         -                         33,877,966        -                         1,511,438          -                         35,389,404        
Due to affiliated entities -                         3,202,922          -                         3,202,922          -                         -                         (3,202,922)         -                         

Total current liabilities 118,888,813      3,285,805          -                         122,174,618      18,194               11,106,454        (3,202,922)         130,096,344      

Long-term debt, net of current portion 202,148,924      -                         -                         202,148,924      -                         -                         -                         202,148,924      
Finance lease obligations, net of current portion 1,461,227          -                         -                         1,461,227          -                         -                         -                         1,461,227          
Operating lease obligations, net of current portion 38,703,143        -                         -                         38,703,143        -                         9,017,089          -                         47,720,232        
Interest rate swaps 13,014,539        -                         -                         13,014,539        -                         -                         -                         13,014,539        
Insurance claims liabilities, net of current portion 11,198,492        -                         -                         11,198,492        -                         -                         -                         11,198,492        
Accrued retirement benefits, net of current portion 25,922,477        -                         -                         25,922,477        -                         -                         -                         25,922,477        
Refundable entry fees 7,201,300          -                         -                         7,201,300          -                         -                         -                         7,201,300          
Deferred entry fees 20,616,715        -                         -                         20,616,715        -                         -                         -                         20,616,715        
Due to affiliated entities -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         42,639,840        (42,639,840)       -                         
Other liabilities -                         237,801             -                         237,801             3,650                 -                         -                         241,451             

Total liabilities 439,155,630      3,523,606          -                         442,679,236      21,844               62,763,383        (45,842,762)       459,621,701      

Net assets
Net assets (deficiency) without donor restrictions 121,409,927      68,260,753        -                         189,670,680      1,814,704          (42,295,884)       -                         149,189,500      
Net assets with donor restrictions 28,644,670        28,622,328        (28,622,328)       28,644,670        297,708             -                         -                         28,942,378        

TOTAL NET ASSETS 150,054,597      96,883,081        (28,622,328)       218,315,350      2,112,412          (42,295,884)       -                         178,131,878      

Total liabilities and net assets 589,210,227$    100,406,687$    (28,622,328)$     660,994,586$    2,134,256$        20,467,499$      (45,842,762)$     637,753,579$    

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 2021

Village Improvement Association of Doylestown and Controlled Entities
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Covered
Doylestown Pine Bridge Doylestown

Hospital Run Doylestown Risk Retention Hospital &
Division Division Eliminations Hospital Group Eliminations Subsidiaries

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 14,931,935$     3,565,296$       -$                       18,497,231$     -$                       -$                       18,497,231$     
Short-term investments 19,908,121       -                         -                         19,908,121       -                         -                         19,908,121       
Assets limited as to use 10,166,089       -                         -                         10,166,089       -                         -                         10,166,089       
Patient accounts receivable 36,954,918       2,511,693         -                         39,466,611       -                         -                         39,466,611       
Due from affiliated entities 38,528,670       -                         (18,167,121)      20,361,549       -                         -                         20,361,549       
Supplies 9,726,792         67,007              -                         9,793,799         -                         -                         9,793,799         
Other current assets 8,004,252         2,821,201         -                         10,825,453       -                         -                         10,825,453       

Total current assets 138,220,777     8,965,197         (18,167,121)      129,018,853     -                         -                         129,018,853     

Assets limited as to use
Internally designated by Board of Trustees 81,997,607       -                         -                         81,997,607       -                         -                         81,997,607       

Externally designated:
   Debt agreements 16,609,545       -                         -                         16,609,545       -                         -                         16,609,545       
   Resident agreements -                         273,800            -                         273,800            -                         -                         273,800            
   Statutory insurance requirements -                         -                         -                         -                         1,125,000         -                         1,125,000         

Total externally designated 16,609,545       273,800            -                         16,883,345       1,125,000         -                         18,008,345       

Total assets limited as to use,
net of current portion 98,607,152       273,800            -                         98,880,952       1,125,000         -                         100,005,952     

Investment in net assets of Doylestown 
Health Foundation 28,622,328       -                         -                         28,622,328       -                         -                         28,622,328       

Property, plant and equipment, net 195,731,185     83,903,569       -                         279,634,754     -                         -                         279,634,754     
Right-of-use assets, operating leases 41,776,061       440,041            -                         42,216,102       -                         -                         42,216,102       
Other assets 10,837,238       -                         -                         10,837,238       -                         (1,125,000)        9,712,238         
Due from affiliated entities 34,772,272       -                         (34,772,272)      -                         -                         -                         -                         

Total assets 548,567,013$   93,582,607$     (52,939,393)$    589,210,227$   1,125,000$       (1,125,000)$      589,210,227$   

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities
Current portion of long term debt 5,025,000$       -$                       -$                       5,025,000$       -$                       -$                       5,025,000$       
Current portion of finance lease obligations 466,749            -                         -                         466,749            -                         -                         466,749            
Current portion of operating lease obligations 4,104,808         100,369            -                         4,205,177         -                         -                         4,205,177         
Current portion of insurance claims liabilities 4,792,129         611,155            -                         5,403,284         -                         -                         5,403,284         
Current portion of accrued retirement benefits 626,657            -                         -                         626,657            -                         -                         626,657            
Accounts payable 38,118,578       2,780,979         -                         40,899,557       -                         -                         40,899,557       
Accrued salaries and payroll taxes 11,539,265       1,152,330         -                         12,691,595       -                         -                         12,691,595       
Accrued vacation 9,446,518         725,139            -                         10,171,657       -                         -                         10,171,657       
Other liabilities 5,244,251         276,920            -                         5,521,171         -                         -                         5,521,171         
Estimated settlements to third-party payors, net 33,168,943       709,023            -                         33,877,966       -                         -                         33,877,966       
Due to affiliated entities -                         18,167,121       (18,167,121)      -                         -                         -                         -                         

Total current liabilities 112,532,898     24,523,036       (18,167,121)      118,888,813     -                         -                         118,888,813     

Long-term debt, net of current portion 202,148,924     -                         -                         202,148,924     -                         -                         202,148,924     
Finance lease obligations, net of current portion 1,461,227         -                         -                         1,461,227         -                         -                         1,461,227         
Operating lease obligations, net of current portion 38,363,402       339,741            -                         38,703,143       -                         -                         38,703,143       
Interest rate swaps 13,014,539       -                         -                         13,014,539       -                         -                         13,014,539       
Insurance claims liabilities, net of current portion 11,198,492       -                         -                         11,198,492       -                         -                         11,198,492       
Accrued retirement benefits, net of current portion 25,922,477       -                         -                         25,922,477       -                         -                         25,922,477       
Refundable entry fees -                         7,201,300         -                         7,201,300         -                         -                         7,201,300         
Deferred entry fees -                         20,616,715       -                         20,616,715       -                         -                         20,616,715       
Due to affiliated entities -                         34,772,272       (34,772,272)      -                         -                         -                         -                         

Total liabilities 404,641,959     87,453,064       (52,939,393)      439,155,630     -                         -                         439,155,630     

Net assets
Net assets (deficiency) without donor restrictions 115,302,726     6,107,201         -                         121,409,927     1,125,000         (1,125,000)        121,409,927     
Net assets with donor restrictions 28,622,328       22,342              -                         28,644,670       -                         -                         28,644,670       

TOTAL NET ASSETS 143,925,054     6,129,543         -                         150,054,597     1,125,000         (1,125,000)        150,054,597     

Total liabilities and net assets 548,567,013$   93,582,607$     (52,939,393)$    589,210,227$   1,125,000$       (1,125,000)$      589,210,227$   

Village Improvement Association of Doylestown and Controlled Entities

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 2021
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Doylestown Doylestown
Hospital & Health Obligated The

Subsidiaries Foundation Eliminations Group Association VIA Affiliates Eliminations Total
Net assets without donor restrictions

Revenue
Patient service revenue 330,711,752$    -$                       -$                       330,711,752$    -$                       57,385,967$      -$                       388,097,719$    
Amortization of deferred entry fees 3,161,724          -                         -                         3,161,724          -                         -                         -                         3,161,724          
Other revenue 31,255,844        5,523,463          -                         36,779,307        116,697             11,507,793        (9,621,139)         38,782,658        
Gifts and bequests -                         1,465,908          -                         1,465,908          126,944             -                         -                         1,592,852          

Total revenue 365,129,320      6,989,371          -                         372,118,691      243,641             68,893,760        (9,621,139)         431,634,953      

Expenses 
Salaries and wages 167,419,916      1,165,688          -                         168,585,604      -                         61,569,694        -                         230,155,298      
Employee benefits 25,747,155        67,204               -                         25,814,359        -                         7,851,020          -                         33,665,379        
Professional fees 4,133,123          -                         -                         4,133,123          -                         829,843             -                         4,962,966          
Supplies and other expenses 154,495,297      942,566             -                         155,437,863      414,362             15,576,314        (9,621,139)         161,807,400      
Depreciation and amortization 25,372,512        4,465                 -                         25,376,977        -                         413,183             -                         25,790,160        
Interest 9,515,568          -                         -                         9,515,568          -                         406,040             -                         9,921,608          

Total expenses 386,683,571      2,179,923          -                         388,863,494      414,362             86,646,094        (9,621,139)         466,302,811      

Operating (loss) income (21,554,251)       4,809,448          -                         (16,744,803)       (170,721)            (17,752,334)       -                         (34,667,858)       

Other income and (losses)
Investment income, net (5,227,109)         (2,102,619)         -                         (7,329,728)         (1,860)                -                         -                         (7,331,588)         
Other accrued retirement costs (2,536,875)         -                         -                         (2,536,875)         -                         -                         -                         (2,536,875)         
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps 7,426,335          -                         -                         7,426,335          -                         -                         -                         7,426,335          

(Deficiency in) excess of revenue and other 
income over expenses and other losses (21,891,900)       2,706,829          -                         (19,185,071)       (172,581)            (17,752,334)       -                         (37,109,986)       

Deficiency in revenue and other income over expenses and
  other losses attributed to noncontrolling interests 886,171             -                         -                         886,171             -                         -                         -                         886,171             

Deficiency in revenue and other income over
expenses and other losses attributed to

Village Improvement Association of Doylestown (21,005,729)       2,706,829          -                         (18,298,900)       (172,581)            (17,752,334)       -                         (36,223,815)       

Other changes in net assets without donor restrictions
Net assets released from restrictions for property, 

plant and equipment 1,406,072          -                         -                         1,406,072          68,079               -                         -                         1,474,151          
Other -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         
Net transfers (to) from Doylestown Health Foundation (7,162,892)         (8,437,108)         -                         (15,600,000)       -                         15,600,000        -                         -                         
Other changes in accrued retirement benefits 8,067,134          -                         -                         8,067,134          -                         -                         -                         8,067,134          

(Decrease) increase in net assets without 
donor restrictions (18,695,415)       (5,730,279)         -                         (24,425,694)       (104,502)            (2,152,334)         -                         (26,682,530)       

Noncontrolling interests
Deficiency of revenues and other income over expenses and
  other losses attributed to noncontrolling interests (886,171)            -                         -                         (886,171)            -                         -                         -                         (886,171)            

Decease in net assets without donor restrictions - 
noncontrolling interests (886,171)            -                         -                         (886,171)            -                         -                         -                         (886,171)            

Net assets with donor restrictions
Restricted contributions -                         13,701,291        -                         13,701,291        19,713               -                         -                         13,721,004        
Investment income, net -                         (62,511)              -                         (62,511)              22,616               -                         -                         (39,895)              
Change in beneficial interests in perpetual trusts -                         (2,763,264)         -                         (2,763,264)         -                         -                         -                         (2,763,264)         
Other -                         (75,737)              -                         (75,737)              -                         -                         -                         (75,737)              
Net assets released from restrictions -                         (7,413,606)         -                         (7,413,606)         (68,079)              -                         -                         (7,481,685)         
Change in beneficial interest in net assets of Doylestown 

Health Foundation 3,386,173          -                         (3,386,173)         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Increase (decrease) in net assets 
with donor restriction 3,386,173          3,386,173          (3,386,173)         3,386,173          (25,750)              -                         -                         3,360,423          

(DECREASE) INCREASE IN NET ASSETS (16,195,413)       (2,344,106)         (3,386,173)         (21,925,692)       (130,252)            (2,152,334)         -                         (24,208,278)       

Net assets, beginning of year 150,054,597      96,883,081        (28,622,328)       218,315,350      2,112,412          (42,295,884)       -                         178,131,878      

Net assets, end of year 133,859,184$    94,538,975$      (32,008,501)$    196,389,658$    1,982,160$        (44,448,218)$    -$                       153,923,600$    

Village Improvement Association of Doylestown and Controlled Entities

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS   

Year ended June 30, 2022
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Covered
Doylestown Pine Bridge Doylestown

Hospital Run Doylestown Risk Retention Hospital &
Division Division Eliminations Hospital Group DR Cardiology Eliminations Subsidiaries

Net assets without donor restrictions
Revenue

Patient service revenue 306,998,364$   22,117,065$   -$                      329,115,429$   -$                      1,596,323$       -$                      330,711,752$   
Amortization of deferred entry fees -                        3,161,724       -                        3,161,724         -                        -                        -                        3,161,724         
Other revenue 17,513,956       13,527,734     -                        31,041,690       3,631,091         214,154            (3,631,091)        31,255,844       

Total revenue 324,512,320     38,806,523     -                        363,318,843     3,631,091         1,810,477         (3,631,091)        365,129,320     

Expenses 
Salaries and wages 146,079,675     18,695,243     -                        164,774,918     -                        2,644,998         -                        167,419,916     
Employee benefits 22,174,818       3,269,605       -                        25,444,423       -                        302,732            -                        25,747,155       
Professional fees 4,094,723         38,400            -                        4,133,123         -                        -                        -                        4,133,123         
Supplies and other expenses 140,806,892     13,234,350     -                        154,041,242     3,480,501         604,645            (3,631,091)        154,495,297     
Depreciation and amortization 17,857,776       7,484,293       -                        25,342,069       -                        30,443              -                        25,372,512       
Interest 8,524,137         991,431          -                        9,515,568         -                        -                        -                        9,515,568         

Total expenses 339,538,021     43,713,322     -                        383,251,343     3,480,501         3,582,818         (3,631,091)        386,683,571     

Operating (loss) income (15,025,701)      (4,906,799)     -                        (19,932,500)      150,590            (1,772,341)        -                        (21,554,251)      

Other income and (losses)
Investment income, net (5,227,109)        -                     -                        (5,227,109)        -                        -                        -                        (5,227,109)        
Other accrued retirement costs (2,536,875)        -                     -                        (2,536,875)        -                        -                        -                        (2,536,875)        
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps 7,426,335         -                     -                        7,426,335         -                        -                        -                        7,426,335         

(Deficiency in) excess of revenue and other 
income over expenses and other losses (15,363,350)      (4,906,799)     -                        (20,270,149)      150,590            (1,772,341)        -                        (21,891,900)      

Deficiency in revenue and other income over expenses and
  other losses attributed to noncontrolling interests -                        -                     -                        -                        -                        886,171            -                        886,171            

Deficiency in revenue and other income over expenses and
  other losses attributed to Doylestown Hospital & Subsidiaries (15,363,350)      (4,906,799)     -                        (20,270,149)      150,590            (886,170)           -                        (21,005,729)      

Other changes in net assets without donor restrictions
Net assets released from restrictions for property, 

plant and equipment 1,191,610         214,462          -                        1,406,072         -                        -                        -                        1,406,072         
Net transfers (to) from Doylestown Health Foundation (7,162,892)        -                     -                        (7,162,892)        -                        -                        -                        (7,162,892)        
Other changes in accrued retirement benefits 8,067,134         -                     -                        8,067,134         -                        -                        -                        8,067,134         

(Decrease) increase in net assets without 
donor restrictions - Doylestown Hospital & Subsidiaries (13,267,498)      (4,692,337)     -                        (17,959,835)      150,590            (886,170)           -                        (18,695,415)      

Noncontrolling interests
Deficiency of revenues and other income over expenses and
  other losses attributed to noncontrolling interest -                        -                     -                        -                        -                        (886,171)           -                        (886,171)           

Decrease in net assets without donor restrictions - noncontrolling interest -                        -                     -                        -                        -                        (886,171)           -                        (886,171)           

Net assets with donor restrictions
Increase in interest in net assets of Doylestown Health Foundation 3,386,173         -                     -                        3,386,173         -                        -                        -                        3,386,173         

Increase (decrease) in net assets 
with donor restriction 3,386,173         -                     -                        3,386,173         -                        -                        -                        3,386,173         

(DECREASE) INCREASE IN NET ASSETS (9,881,325)        (4,692,337)     -                        (14,573,662)      150,590            (1,772,341)        -                        (16,195,413)      

Net assets, beginning of year 143,925,054     6,129,543       -                        150,054,597     1,125,000         -                        (1,125,000)        150,054,597     

Net assets, end of year 134,043,729$   1,437,206$     -$                      135,480,935$   1,275,590$       (1,772,341)$      (1,125,000)$      133,859,184$   

Doylestown Hospital

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS  

Year ended June 30, 2022
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Doylestown Doylestown
Hospital & Health Obligated The

Subsidiaries Foundation Eliminations Group Association VIA Affiliates Eliminations Total
Net assets without donor restrictions

Revenue
Patient service revenue 310,524,878$    -$                       -$                       310,524,878$    -$                       50,962,398$      -$                       361,487,276$    
Amortization of deferred entry fees 2,882,597          -                         -                         2,882,597          -                         -                         -                         2,882,597          
Other revenue 47,483,154        5,111,905          -                         52,595,059        670,145             9,709,749          (9,505,867)         53,469,086        
Gifts and bequests 407,884             2,113,755          -                         2,521,639          -                         -                         (30,000)              2,491,639          

Total revenue 361,298,513      7,225,660          -                         368,524,173      670,145             60,672,147        (9,535,867)         420,330,598      

Expenses 
Salaries and wages 146,150,694      868,444             -                         147,019,138      -                         57,026,843        -                         204,045,981      
Employee benefits 23,232,783        82,376               -                         23,315,159        -                         6,502,222          -                         29,817,381        
Professional fees 3,891,443          -                         -                         3,891,443          -                         294,894             -                         4,186,337          
Supplies and other expenses 139,071,954      797,428             -                         139,869,382      355,682             15,432,996        (9,505,867)         146,152,193      
Depreciation and amortization 24,374,139        3,849                 -                         24,377,988        23,576               443,187             -                         24,844,751        
Interest 9,022,836          -                         -                         9,022,836          -                         459,149             -                         9,481,985          

Total expenses 345,743,849      1,752,097          -                         347,495,946      379,258             80,159,291        (9,505,867)         418,528,628      

Operating income (loss) 15,554,664        5,473,563          -                         21,028,227        290,887             (19,487,144)       (30,000)              1,801,970          

Other income and (losses)
Investment income, net 12,108,902        5,645,227          -                         17,754,129        -                         -                         -                         17,754,129        
Other accrued retirement costs (3,927,888)         -                         -                         (3,927,888)         -                         -                         -                         (3,927,888)         
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps 6,107,812          -                         -                         6,107,812          -                         -                         -                         6,107,812          

Excess of (deficiency in) revenue and other 
income over expenses and other losses 29,843,490        11,118,790        -                         40,962,280        290,887             (19,487,144)       (30,000)              21,736,023        

Other changes in net assets without donor restrictions
Net assets released from restrictions for property, 

plant and equipment 2,818,819          4,009,429          -                         6,828,248          -                         -                         -                         6,828,248          
Other -                         -                         -                         -                         (650)                   -                         -                         (650)                   
Net transfers from (to) Doylestown Health Foundation (9,227,532)         (3,772,468)         -                         (13,000,000)       (30,000)              13,000,000        30,000               -                         
Other changes in accrued retirement benefits 11,920,766        -                         -                         11,920,766        -                         -                         -                         11,920,766        

Increase (decrease) in net assets without 
donor restrictions 35,355,543        11,355,751        -                         46,711,294        260,237             (6,487,144)         -                         40,484,387        

Net assets with donor restrictions
Restricted contributions 417                    8,882,988          -                         8,883,405          6,803                 -                         -                         8,890,208          
Investment income, net -                         392,484             -                         392,484             80,065               -                         -                         472,549             
Change in beneficial interests in perpetual trusts -                         2,373,481          -                         2,373,481          -                         -                         -                         2,373,481          
Other -                         (10,342)              -                         (10,342)              650                    -                         -                         (9,692)                
Net assets released from restrictions -                         (12,126,568)       -                         (12,126,568)       (51,520)              -                         -                         (12,178,088)       
Change in beneficial interest in net assets of Doylestown -                         

Health Foundation (487,957)            -                         487,957             -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

(Decrease) increase in net assets 
with donor restriction (487,540)            (487,957)            487,957             (487,540)            35,998               -                         -                         (451,542)            

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS 34,868,003        10,867,794        487,957             46,223,754        296,235             (6,487,144)         -                         40,032,845        

Net assets, beginning of year 115,186,594      86,015,287        (29,110,285)       172,091,596      1,816,177          (35,808,740)       -                         138,099,033      

Net assets, end of year 150,054,597$    96,883,081$      (28,622,328)$    218,315,350$    2,112,412$        (42,295,884)$    -$                       178,131,878$    

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS  

Year ended June 30, 2021
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Covered
Doylestown Pine Bridge Doylestown

Hospital Run Doylestown Risk Retention Hospital &
Division Division Eliminations Hospital Group Eliminations Subsidiaries

Net assets without donor restrictions
Revenue

Patient service revenue      290,202,372$    20,322,506$      -$                      310,524,878$    -$                      -$                      310,524,878$    
Amortization of deferred entry fees -                        2,882,597          -                        2,882,597          -                        -                        2,882,597          
Other revenue 34,498,912        12,984,242        -                        47,483,154        -                        -                        47,483,154        
Gifts and bequests 407,884             -                        -                        407,884             -                        -                        407,884             

Total revenue 325,109,168      36,189,345        -                        361,298,513      -                        -                        361,298,513      

Expenses 
Salaries and wages 129,756,859      16,393,835        -                        146,150,694      -                        -                        146,150,694      
Employee benefits 19,872,693        3,360,090          -                        23,232,783        -                        -                        23,232,783        
Professional fees 3,847,043          44,400               -                        3,891,443          -                        -                        3,891,443          
Supplies and other expenses 127,088,395      11,983,559        -                        139,071,954      -                        -                        139,071,954      
Depreciation and amortization 17,096,290        7,277,849          -                        24,374,139        -                        -                        24,374,139        
Interest 8,031,187          991,649             -                        9,022,836          -                        -                        9,022,836          

Total expenses 305,692,467      40,051,382        -                        345,743,849      -                        -                        345,743,849      

Operating income (loss)       19,416,701        (3,862,037)        -                        15,554,664        -                        -                        15,554,664        

Other income and (losses)
Investment income, net      12,108,902        -                        -                        12,108,902        -                        -                        12,108,902        
Other accrued retirement costs (3,927,888)        -                        -                        (3,927,888)        -                        -                        (3,927,888)        
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps      6,107,812          -                        -                        6,107,812          -                        -                        6,107,812          

Excess of (deficiency in) revenue and other 
income over expenses and other losses 33,705,527        (3,862,037)        -                        29,843,490        -                        -                        29,843,490        

Other changes in net assets without donor restrictions
Net assets released from restrictions for property, 

plant and equipment     2,818,819          -                        -                        2,818,819          -                        -                        2,818,819          
Net transfers from (to) Doylestown Health Foundation   (9,246,423)        18,891               -                        (9,227,532)        1,125,000          (1,125,000)        (9,227,532)        
Other changes in accrued retirement benefits   11,920,766        -                        -                        11,920,766        -                        -                        11,920,766        

Increase (decrease) in net assets without 
donor restrictions 39,198,689        (3,843,146)        -                        35,355,543        1,125,000          (1,125,000)        35,355,543        

Net assets with donor restrictions
Restricted contributions -                        417                    -                        417                    -                        -                        417                    
Decrease in interest in net assets of Doylestown 
   Health Foundation (487,957)           -                        -                        (487,957)           -                        -                        (487,957)           

(Decrease) increase in net assets 
with donor restriction      (487,957)           417                    -                        (487,540)           -                        -                        (487,540)           

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS 38,710,732        (3,842,729)        -                        34,868,003        1,125,000          (1,125,000)        34,868,003        

Net assets, beginning of year 105,214,322      9,972,272          -                        115,186,594      -                        -                        115,186,594      

Net assets, end of year 143,925,054$    6,129,543$        -$                      150,054,597$    1,125,000$        (1,125,000)$      150,054,597$    

Doylestown Hospital

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS   

Year ended June 30, 2021
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 INDEPENDENT LIVING PERSONAL CARE SKILLED NURSING COMMENTS

HOUSEKEEPING Routine Housekeeping Services Bi-weekly Plan included in Fee Daily, included in Fee Daily, included in Fee
Dust, vacuum, clean uncarpeted floors, 
clean bathrooms and kitchen

Heavy Housekeeping in Unit
Included in Monthly Service 
Fee Twice a Year, included in Fee

Trash Removal
Daily from trash rooms, 
included in Fee Daily, included in Fee Daily, included in Fee

Recycling Program

Weekly removal from 
recycling stations, included in 
fee

Exterior Window Cleaning

Annually with Heavy Cleaning 
or as provided for in Villager 
Guide Twice a Year, included in Fee Quarterly

Additional Services Upon Request Published Rates

LAUNDRY Supply Linens No Weekly or as needed Weekly or as needed

Supply Towels No Weekly or as needed Weekly or as needed

Launder Linens No Weekly or as needed Weekly or as needed

Launder Towels No Daily Daily

Personal Laundry As requested - published rates As requested - published rates
As requested - published 
rates

Common Area Laundry Rooms
One included in each cottage 
cluster for use by Villagers

 Available to Residents and 
Families

 Available to Residents and 
Families

Included in Independent Living Cottage 
Clusters only

Dry Cleaning
Under arrangement with 
private vendors

Under arrangement with 
private vendors

Under arrangement with 
private vendors Pick Up/Drop Off Service Available

UTILITIES Water & Sewer Included in monthly Fee Included in Fee Included in Fee

Trash Collection Included in monthly Fee Included in Fee Included in Fee

Electricity Included in monthly Fee Included in Fee Included in Fee

Heat and Air-Conditioning Included in monthly Fee Included in Fee Included in Fee

Emergency Call System Included in monthly Fee Included in Fee Included in Fee

Telephone Service Available at published rates Available at published rates Included in Fee
Health Center provides a landline phone for 
all rooms at No Charge

Internet Service Available at published rates Guest WiFi provided for free Guest WiFi provided for free

PINE RUN COMMUNITY

PRODUCT/SERVICES DEFINITIONS
APPENDIX A

DOYLESTOWN, PA 18901

Note: some of these services were modified during the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic in order to prevent infection spread and ensure resident safety.
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 INDEPENDENT LIVING PERSONAL CARE SKILLED NURSING COMMENTS

PINE RUN COMMUNITY

PRODUCT/SERVICES DEFINITIONS
APPENDIX A

DOYLESTOWN, PA 18901

Note: some of these services were modified during the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic in order to prevent infection spread and ensure resident safety.

Furnishings & 
Features Window Coverings

Window coverings on all 
windows

Blinds provided on all 
windows

Blinds provided on all 
windows Blinds maintained by Pine Run

Sheet Vinyl Flooring Bathrooms & Kitchen N/A N/A
All flooring owned by Pine Run,  
replacement included

Wall to Wall Carpeting All other areas All areas All areas
All flooring owned by Pine Run,  
replacement included

 Kitchen Appliances: N/A N/A
Pine Run maintains and replaces all kitchen 
appliances as necessary

   Refrigerator with Icemaker Included

  Oven/Range Included

  Microwave Oven Included

  Garbage Disposal Included

  Dishwasher Included

Washer/Dryer in Unit
Included with Cottage, 
including most Studio models N/A N/A

Pine Run maintains and replaces all 
washer/dryer units as necessary

Vaulted Ceilings in Unit
Standard with Doylestown 
Cottage N/A N/A

Optional at additional cost in select 
residences

Crown Molding in Unit Standard N/A N/A

Four Seasons Room Optional N/A N/A Optional at additional cost

Lighting Fixtures Included Included Over bed lighting May elect to upgrade at additional cost

Ceiling Fans Optional N/A N/A Optional at additional cost

Furniture Not Included
Bed, bedside table, dresser, 
side chair

Bed, bedside table, dresser, 
side chair, lockable drawer
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 INDEPENDENT LIVING PERSONAL CARE SKILLED NURSING COMMENTS

PINE RUN COMMUNITY

PRODUCT/SERVICES DEFINITIONS
APPENDIX A

DOYLESTOWN, PA 18901

Note: some of these services were modified during the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic in order to prevent infection spread and ensure resident safety.

MAINTENANCE

Common Property including 
appliances, paint touch up & window 
blinds provided by Pine Run Included in monthly Fee Included in Fee Included in Fee

Resident Property
Upon request at published 
rates

Upon request at published 
rates

Upon request at published 
rates

Work Order System Included in monthly Fee Included in Fee Included in Fee
Assigned and prioritized upon reporting of 
repair needs

Preventive Maintenance Program Included in monthly Fee Included in Fee Included in Fee

Routine and seasonal preventive 
maintenance scheduled and completed 
without resident intervention

Additional Services
Upon request at published 
rates

Uncovered Surface Parking
One Space - unreserved 
included in monthly fee N/A N/A

PARKING Uncovered Surface Parking
One Space - reserved upon 
request at published rates N/A N/A

Covered/Carport Parking

One Space - reserved upon 
request & availability at 
published rates N/A N/A

Covered Under Building Parking

One Space - reserved upon 
request & availability at 
published rates N/A N/A

Cottage Cluster under building parking, 
excludes Fringetree Court under building 
parking which is included with Entrance Fee. 

STORAGE Storage Closet Included in monthly Fee

TRANSPORTATION

Regularly Scheduled Transportation 
on Pine Run Campus and between 
Pine Run and Pine Run Lakeview and 
Doylestown Hospital Included in monthly Fee

Included - escort fee may be 
charged if required

Included - escort fee may be 
charged if required Scheduled through transportation office

Regularly Scheduled Transportation 
within defined local service area Available at additional cost Available at additional cost Available at additional cost Scheduled through transportation office

Transportation outside defined service 
area Available at additional cost Available at additional cost Available at additional cost Scheduled through transportation office
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 INDEPENDENT LIVING PERSONAL CARE SKILLED NURSING COMMENTS

PINE RUN COMMUNITY

PRODUCT/SERVICES DEFINITIONS
APPENDIX A

DOYLESTOWN, PA 18901

Note: some of these services were modified during the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic in order to prevent infection spread and ensure resident safety.

ACTIVITIES & 
RECREATION Scheduled Activities & Education

Most included in Monthly Fee, 
Special Activities and Events 
may incur an additional 
charge

Most included in Monthly Fee, 
Special Activities and Events 
may incur an additional 
charge

Most included in Monthly Fee, 
Special Activities and Events 
may incur an additional 
charge

Educational, Health, Recreational & 
Religious

Newsletters Included in Fee Included in Fee Included in Fee
Articles of interest and upcoming  calendar 
of events

Amenities Available for Resident Use Beauty/barber salon Beauty/barber salon Beauty/barber salon Additional charge(s) may apply

Pool

Fitness Center Bistro Market

Greenhouse Great room Arts & Craft room

Auditorium/theater Library Chapel

Concierge Services Arts & Craft room Outdoor Patio

Arts & Crafts Barn including 
Woodworking shop Outdoor Courtyard

Wellness Clinic Gazebo overlooking pond

Library
TV Lounge with a large 
selection of books

Business Center

Card room Activity or TV Lounge

Pub

Meeting spaces
Conference Room / Private 
Dinign Room Available

Country/sundries store

Billiards/pool table

Outdoor recreation area
Front porch / Pond Gazebo / 
Courtyard
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 INDEPENDENT LIVING PERSONAL CARE SKILLED NURSING COMMENTS

PINE RUN COMMUNITY

PRODUCT/SERVICES DEFINITIONS
APPENDIX A

DOYLESTOWN, PA 18901

Note: some of these services were modified during the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic in order to prevent infection spread and ensure resident safety.

DINING SERVICES Meal Plans

Monthly Flexible Dining 
Allowance, including 4 guest 
per meal

Three Meals Per Day included 
in Fee

Three Meals Per Day included 
in Fee

Dining Hours Main Dining Room

   Mon-Sat Lunch 11:30 am to 1:30 pm

   Mon-Sat Dinner 4:30 pm to 6:30 pm

   Sunday Brunch 10:30 am to 2:30 pm

Grille & Pub

   Mon-Sun 7:00 am to 6:30 pm 

   Mon-Sun (Pub hours) 3:00 pm to 6:30 pm

Cottonwood Café

   Monday - Friday 7:30 am to 3:00 pm

Meal Delivery to Cottage
No Charge if Medically 
Necessary. 

$6.00 Charge for delivery if 
not medically approved. 
Continental menu only. N/A

Additional charge may apply if not medically 
necessary

Take-Home Meal Pick-Up
Meal priced ala carte. No fee 
to pick up N/A N/A Dinner Only - dinner pickup times as posted

Catering & Special Functions
Available Upon Request, 
Additional charges apply

Available Upon Request, 
Additional charges apply

Available Upon Request, 
Additional charges apply Charges & Fees according to function

Private Dining Rooms
Included in Monthly Service 
Fee based on availability Available on 1st Floor N/A Available through reservation

Guest Meals
Available at current published 
rates

Available at current published 
rates

Available at current published 
rates

Hours as posted and adjusted 
as necessary for the benefit of 
residents

Hours as posted and adjusted 
as necessary for the benefit 
of residents

Updated:  October 2022 Appendix  A - 5



 INDEPENDENT LIVING PERSONAL CARE SKILLED NURSING COMMENTS

PINE RUN COMMUNITY

PRODUCT/SERVICES DEFINITIONS
APPENDIX A

DOYLESTOWN, PA 18901

Note: some of these services were modified during the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic in order to prevent infection spread and ensure resident safety.

PETS Pets Allowed No No

HEALTHCARE HealthCare Plans
Asset Preservation - Pine Run 
offers a convenient Asset 
Preservation plan for those 
residents who may wish to 
have an alternative pricing 
option.  This information 
canbe obtained from the Pine 
Run Sales & Marketing 
Department. N/A N/A

Independent Living Residency 
Agreements

50% and 70% Refundable 
Entrance Fee Plan - Entrance 
Fee is 50% and 70% 
refundable per conditions of 
Agreement -  subject to 
certain Cottage Styles and 
Locations N/A N/A

Traditional Entrance Fee Plan - 
Entrance Fee refund declines 
over 50 months until fully 
expired per conditions of 
Agreement -  subject to 
certain Cottage Styles and 
Locations N/A N/A

Personal Care & Personal Care 
Dementia Care N/A Fee For Service Per Day N/A

Pricing varies depending on location and 
service levels required

Skilled Nursing Care N/A N/A Fee For Service Per Day
Private and Semi-Private accommodations 
as available

Pine Run Does not offer Life Care Plans - All Levels of Care are Fee For Service

 * Subject to rules and regulations that may be adopted and modified as required.  The Executive Director, at any time, may require the removal of any pet s/he deems to be a 
nuisance or danger to others.  Resident must have advanced emergency kennel arrangements made for each pet
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 INDEPENDENT LIVING PERSONAL CARE SKILLED NURSING COMMENTS

PINE RUN COMMUNITY

PRODUCT/SERVICES DEFINITIONS
APPENDIX A

DOYLESTOWN, PA 18901

Note: some of these services were modified during the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic in order to prevent infection spread and ensure resident safety.

OTHER SERVICES Emergency Call System Included in Monthly Fee Included in Fee Included in Fee

Assurance System Included in Monthly Fee Included in Fee Included in Fee

24-Hour Staffing Included in Monthly Fee Included in Fee Included in Fee
Emergency response personnel on-site 24 
hours per day

Medical Director/Consultant N/A Included Included

Healthcare Committee

Decision making body 
assisting with determining 
need for resident relocations 
for health related reasons

Decision making body 
assisting with determining 
need for resident relocations 
for health related reasons

Decision making body 
assisting with determining 
need for resident relocations 
for health related reasons

Healthcare Committee is comprised of the 
Executive Director, Wellness Spectrum, 
Marketing, Social Services, HealthCare 
Administration, Personal Care Administration 
& Financial Services

Help in Obtaining Outside Health 
Services Included in Monthly Fee Included in Fee Included in Fee

Coordinated through Wellness & Social 
Services Dept

Companion Service Available at additional charge Available at additional charge Available at additional charge Coordinated through Wellness Department

Dental Service on Site
Available at additional charge 
through private vendor

Available at additional charge 
through private vendor

Available at additional charge 
through private vendor Outside Contract Services

Doctor on Site by Appointment

Available at additional charge 
through private vendor & may 
be covered by Medicare or 
other insurance provider

Available at additional charge 
through private vendor & may 
be covered by Medicare or 
other insurance provider

Available at additional charge 
through private vendor & 
may be covered by Medicare 
or other insurance provider Outside Contract Services

Physical Therapy At additional charge*** At additional charge*** At additional charge*** Outside Contract Services

Occupational Therapy At additional charge*** At additional charge*** At additional charge*** Outside Contract Services

Speech Therapy At additional charge*** At additional charge*** At additional charge*** Outside Contract Services

Post-Therapy Personal Training Available at additional charge Available at additional charge Available at additional charge
Coordinated through the Healthy Living 
Department

Personal Training Available at additional charge Available at additional charge Available at additional charge
Coordinated through the Healthy Living 
Department

Laboratory Services At additional charge*** At additional charge*** At additional charge*** Outside Contract Services

General Diagnostic / X-ray/Mammo At additional charge*** At additional charge*** At additional charge*** Outside Contract Services
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PINE RUN COMMUNITY

PRODUCT/SERVICES DEFINITIONS
APPENDIX A

DOYLESTOWN, PA 18901

Note: some of these services were modified during the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic in order to prevent infection spread and ensure resident safety.

OTHER SERVICES Assistance with:

  Ambulation At additional charge* Included in Fee Included in Fee

  Bathing At additional charge* Included in Fee Included in Fee

  Dressing At additional charge* Included in Fee Included in Fee

  Grooming At additional charge* Included in Fee Included in Fee

  Personal Supervision At additional charge* Included in Fee Included in Fee

  Supervision of Medications At additional charge* Included in Fee Included in Fee

Admittance Policy for Pine Run 
Residents N/A

Priority admissions for Pine 
Run Residents

Priority admissions for Pine 
Run Residents

Miscellaneous 
Services Move-In Coordination Included N/A N/A

Assistance with coordination of finish 
selections, moving arrangements, hanging 
of pictures, Community Orientation

Photocopying & Facsimiles No charge No charge No charge

Notary No charge No charge No charge By appointment only

Receiving Packages/Deliveries No charge No charge No charge
Concierge Services will notify if too large for 
Resident Mail area

Guest Rooms Available at additional cost Available at additional cost Available at additional cost
Rooms available by reservation through 
Concierge Services

24-Hour Security/Reception Included in Monthly Fee Included in Fee Included in Fee

Maintenance of Medical Emergency 
Records Forms provided Yes Yes

Information to be kept in the resident's 
Cottage

Tipping No No No

An Employee Holiday Fund has been 
organized in lieu of tipping by the Villager 
Board.  There is no required contribution, all 
contributions are voluntary

 In-house  Mail Boxes Provided Provided Provided

Independent Living located in the 
Community Center; Personal Care and 
Skilled are located in resident rooms

For Independent Living, coordinated through 
Companion Program
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 INDEPENDENT LIVING PERSONAL CARE SKILLED NURSING COMMENTS

PINE RUN COMMUNITY

PRODUCT/SERVICES DEFINITIONS
APPENDIX A

DOYLESTOWN, PA 18901

Note: some of these services were modified during the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic in order to prevent infection spread and ensure resident safety.

Miscellaneous 
Services Villager/Resident Council Yes Yes Yes

Resident Committees Yes Yes
Committees subordinate to the respective 
Council 

Management on Site Yes Yes Yes

Detailed Monthly Billing
Included in Monthly Service 
Fee Included in Fee Included in Fee

Real Estate Taxes
Included in Monthly Service 
Fee

Medical Deductibility Verification Provided Annually Provided Annually Provided Annually

Personal Property Insurance Responsibility of resident

Monthly Service Fee & Daily Fee 
Increase Basis

Adjusted Annually effective 
July 1st

Adjusted Annually effective 
July 1st

Adjusted Annually effective 
July 1st

*** Charges may be covered by Medicare or other 3rd parties.  Ultimate financial responsibility remains with the resident
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